
CITY OF 

~t DELL 

AGENDA 
RIO DELL CITY COUNCIL 

CLOSED SESSION - 6:00 P.M. 
SPECIAL MEETING - 6:30 P.M. 

TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 12,2013 
CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

675 WILDWOOD AVENUE, RIO DELL 

WELCOME . .. By your presence in the City Council Chambers, you are participating in the process of 
representative government. Copies of this agenda, staff reports and other material available to the City 
Council are available at the City Clerk's office in City Hall, 675 Wildwood Avenue. Your City 
Government welcomes your interest and hopes you will attend and participate in Rio Dell City Council 
meetings often. 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in 
this meeting, please contact the Office of the City Clerk at (707) 764-3532. Notification 48 hours prior 
to the meeting will enable the City to make reasonable arrangements to assure accessibility to this 
meeting. 

THE TYPE OF COUNCIL BUSINESS IS IDENTIFIED IMMEDIATELY AFTER EACH 
TITLE IN BOLD CAPITAL LETTERS 

A. CALL TO ORDER - 6:00 p.m. 

B. ROLLCALL 

C. ANNOUNCEMENT OF ITEMS TO BE DISCUSSED IN CLOSED SESSION AS FOLLOWS: 

1) 2013/1112.01- CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL-ANTICIPATED LITIGATION 
Consider Initiation of Litigation Pursuant to Subdivision (c) of Section 
54956.9: 1 Potential Case (facts and circumstances not yet known to 
adverse party) 

D. PUBLIC COMMENT REGARDING CLOSED SESSION 

E. RECESS INTO CLOSED SESSION 

F. RECONVENE INTO OPEN SESSION - 6:30 p.m. 

G. ORAL ANNOUNCEMENTS 

H. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

I. CEREMONIAL MATTERS 

1) 2013/11.12.02 - Proclamation in Recognition and Support of the Great American 
Smokeout (Sylvia Jutila will be present to accept Proclamation) 1 



J. PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS 

This time is for persons who wish to address the Council on any matter not on this agenda and over 
which the Council has jurisdiction. As such, a dialogue with the Councilor staff is not intended. Items 
requiring Council action not listed on this agenda may be placed on the next regular agenda for 
consideration if the Council directs, unless a finding is made by at least 2/3rds of the Council members 
present that the item came up after the agenda was posted and is of an urgenCl) nature requiring 
immediate action. Please limit comments to a maximum of 3 minutes. 

K. CONSENT CALENDAR 

The Consent Calendar adopting the printed recommended Council action will be enacted with one vote. 
The Mayor will first ask the staff, the public, and the Council members if there is anyone who wishes to 
address any matter on the Consent Calendar. The matters removed from the Consent Calendar will be 
considered individually in the next section, "SPECIAL CALL ITEMS". 

1) 2013/1112.03 - Approve Minutes of the October 15, 2013 Regular Meeting 
(ACTION) 2 

2) 2013/1112-04 - Approve Pay Request No. 20 to Wahlund Construction/Sequoia 
Construction Specialties in the amount of $556,520.84 for work 
related to the Wastewater Treatment Plant Upgrade and Disposal 
Project (ACTION) 10 

3) 2013/1112.05 - Authorize the City Manager to execute a Contract Amendment with 
Kurt Hirtzer Inspection Services extending Construction Management 
Services through December 31, 2013 for the Wastewater Treatment 
Plant Upgrade and Disposal Project (ACTION) 20 

4) 2013/1107.06 - Budget Variance Report by Fund Type and Comparative Balance 
Sheet for the year ending June 30, 2013 (RECEIVE & FILE) 21 

5) 2013/1112.07 - Ratify City Manager's action to approve Change Order No.2 in the 
amount of $3,191.33 for Sidewalk Replacement within the Wildwood 
Ave. Streetscape Improvement Project area (ACTION) 28 

6) 2013/1112.08 - Approve modification of Employment Agreement with City Manager 
James R. Stretch (ACTION) 32 

7) 2013/1112.09 - Approve Pay Request No.1 in the amount of $439,644.28 to Cal Electro 
for Wildwood Ave. Streets cape Improvement Project (ACTION) 34 

8) 2013/1112.10 - Approve cancellation of November 19, 2013 Regular City Council 
meeting (ACTION) 39 

9) 2013/1112.11 - Authorize the establishment of Internal Service Fund 005 titled 
Administrative Fleet (ACTION) 40 



L. SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS 

M. SPECIAL CALL ITEMS/COMMUNITY AFFAIRS 

1) "SPECIAL CALL ITEMS" from Consent Calendar 

2) 2013/1112.12 - Determine City position on Senate Bill 405 related to phase out of 
Single-Use Plastic Bags in California (ACTION) 42 

3) 2013/1112.13 - Conceptual Approval for Contracting with Humboldt Waste 
Management Authority for Recycling Program Administration 
(ACTION) 56 

4) 2013/1112.14 - Provide City Manager direction on City Manager Recruitment 
(ACTION) 58 

5) 2013/1112.15 - Authorize City Manager to evaluate enrollment in California Public 
Employees Retirement System (CaIPERS) (ACTION) 60 

6) 2013/1112.16 - Potential Change Order on Wastewater Treatment Plant Upgrade 
and Disposal Project (Drainage) (ACTION) 62 

7) 2013/1112.17 - Provide staff direction on amendment of City Council meeting 
provisions related to meetings occurring on election day (ACTION) 63 

N. ORDINANCES/SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS/PUBLIC HEARINGS 

O. REPORTS/STAFF COMMUNICATIONS 

1. City Manager 
2. Chief of Police 
3. Finance Director 
4. Community Development Director 

P. COUNCIL REPORTS/ COMMUNICATIONS 

Q. ADJOURNMENT 

The next proposed regular meeting will be on 
December 3,2013 at 6:30 p.m. in City Hall Council Chambers 



PROCLAMATION 
k 1?~~0fflU"t;iaD IJ.Dd Support 0/ 

THE GREAT AMERICAN SMOKEOUT 
November 21, 2013 

Whereas, the American Cancer Society encourages all tobacco users to join the Great 
American Smokeout and quit nicotine for at least one day; and 

Whereas, tobacco-use remains the leading preventable cause of death in the United States; and 

Whereas, electronic cigarettes are a relatively new way to introduce nicotine into the human 
body by vaporizing liquid that often contains un-regulated levels of nicotine; and 

Whereas, electronic cigarette nicotine cartridges come in fruit and candy flavors - such as 
chocolate, gummy bear and bubble gum- that appeal to youth and may lure a new generation 
into nicotine addiction; and 

Whereas, Food and Drug Administration testing of leading electronic cigarette brands found 
detectable levels of potentially harmful compounds (including diethylene glycol and 
nitrosamines); and 

Whereas, electronic cigarette marketing has confused the public with claims that electronic 
cigarettes can help people quit smoking and that they can be smoked anywhere; and 

Whereas, there is no scientific evidence or evaluative studies that prove that electronic 
cigarettes help people quit; and 

Whereas, many countries, states and local jurisdictions have already completely banned 
electronic cigarettes, or strictly regulate them; and 

Whereas, there are many proven resources, many of them free, to help nicotine users quit. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT PROCLAIMED that the City Council of the City of Rio Dell 
hereby recognizes and supports the American Cancer Society's GREAT AMERICAN 
SMOKEOUT, on November 21,2013 in the City of Rio Dell and encourages all citizens who 
smoke, or use chew/dip tobacco, to demonstrate to themselves and their children that they can 
quit using tobacco by joining the American Cancer Society's Great American Smokeout. 

Date Jack Thompson, Mayor 

1 



RIO DELL CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING 
OCTOBER 15,2013 
MINUTES 

The regular meeting of the Rio Dell City Council was called to order at 6:30 p.m. by Mayor 
Thompson. 

ROLL CALL: Present: Mayor Thompson, Councilmembers Johnson, Marks, and Wilson 

Absent: Councilmember Woodall (excused) 

Others Present: City Manager Stretch, Finance Director Beauchaine, Community 
Development Director Caldwell and City Clerk Dunham 

PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS 

Karen Chase, 480 Edwards Dr. addressed the Council once again about the destruction of the 
river bar and presented several pictures and a letter urging the City Council to close the river bar 
to all off road vehicles. She maintained that off road vehicles kill animals, create noise and 
destroy the natural habitat that animals rely on. She went on to read a quote taken from an article 
titled: Wreckreation: All-Terrain Vehicles and their Impact on the Environment which stated: 
"Streams are especially vulnerable to pollution by OR V's as these vehicle tend to ford streams 
without any thought of the pollution to the water they pass through. Wetlands are disrupted by 
jet skis, and OR V's increase sediment and toxic chemicalsfromfluids in ATV's contacting of 
water. Studies also suggest that watersheds with ORV trails through them have higher 
percentages of sands." She commented that this article was of particular interest to her since the 
City relies on the river for its' drinking water. 

Mike Chase referred to the last picture presented and pointed out that rock is being hauled off of 
the river bar. 

Bert Silva, 1155 Eeloa Ave. said he grew up in Scotia and now owns his home in Rio Dell and 
that the river bar has always been a place to recreate and take your kids to ride A TV's, fish, 
swim or even site in your rifles and now the only access to the river bar is at Edwards Dr. He 
said the rights of the majority of our citizens are being taken away because of a few people 
causing the destruction and suggested surveillance cameras be installed at the entrances to 
eliminate the problem. He said some of the people complaining live by the river but living by 
the river bar means hearing the sounds of recreation. He commented that it is ludicrous to say 
that A TV's are destroying the river bar because each year when the river rises the tracks are 
washed away. He stated that shutting off access to the river bar is like locking citizens out of 
their own back door. He added that the concerns with regard to destruction should be addressed 
but to deny the rights of so many people is over the top. He said being able to enjoy the natural 
surroundings of the river and bluffs is why so many people choose to live here and those rights 
should not be taken away. 

2 



CONSENT CALENDAR 

OCTOBER 15,2013 MINUTES 
Page 2 

Motion was made by Marks/Johnson to approve the consent calendar including the approval of 
minutes of the October 1, 2013 regular meeting; and approval of Pay Request No. 1 in the 
amount of $87,836.05 to SJL Construction for work related to the Davis Street and Wildwood 
A venue Safe Routes to School Project. Motion carried 4-0. 

SPECIAL CALL ITEMS/COMMUNITY AFFAIRS 

Approve Change Order No.9 Related to the Wastewater Treatment Plant Upgrade and Disposal 
Project in the Amount of -$7,000.55 
Finance Director Beauchaine provided a staff report and said Change Order No.9 includes 
$15,154.05 in additional items as well as $22,163.60 in credits for deletion of unnecessary 
project components resulting in an overall credit of$7,009.55. She explained the credits 
include deletion of both 8 inch and 6 inch piping at the treatment plant, deletion of saw cuts at 
the chlorine contact basin, deletion of the fiberglass shelter, slab and chemical metering 
equipment and deletion of a 14 inch plug valve. She said additions include installation of 
transducer wiring from the contact basin to the SCADA panel, exterior painting of the operations 
building, floor leveling, and installation of vinyl flooring and acid stain in the new operations 
building, repair of dry rot on the overhangs of the operations building, installation of a trench 
drain at the dewatering building, and the removal and replacement of concrete curb. 

Finance Director Beauchaine stated the change order also requests a 27 day extension to 
Wahlund Construction's contract for completion of the effluent pipeline construction and tie-in. 
She said the reason for the additional time is due to the 30-day delay at the State Lands 
Commission which caused scheduling conflicts with the drilling sub-contractor, and construction 
difficulties with the pipeline casing. 

Councilmember Johnson said it appears we are granting Wah lund Construction an extension of 5 
additional working days due to an error caused by the sub-contractor with regard to welds in the 
casing. 

Finance Director Beauchaine explained that her understanding is that the weld in the casing 
separated because when they were dragging the pipe in they encountered rock much sooner than 
anticipated and the impact cracked the weld. She said the issue was unforeseeable. Also, there 
were certain geological assumptions made where levels of soil would begin but because there 
wasn't an exact sloping they did not know where they would be encountering rocks. 

Councilmember Johnson commented that it seems the drilling contractor would know by their 
rate of production what kind of materials they are going through. 

3 



OCTOBER 15, 2013 MINUTES 
Page 3 

Richard Behrens, Construction Manager said the process that has just been completed is not a 
boring process but driving of the casing and that he has observed the techniques of welding 
between each section of pipe and it is unknown as to why the weld failed. He stated the 
contractor put in a whole new casing and noted that part of the delay is due to permitting. 

Councilmember Johnson said he doesn't have a problem with the permitting delay; it is the 1 
week extension for the weld in the casing, and why the City is giving an extension. He asked if 
the contract provides for an automatic extension when something like this happens. 

Finance Beauchaine referred to Article 12 of the General Conditions which states that if there is 
a delay beyond the control of the contractor that interferes with the performance of the contract, 
the contractor is entitled to an equitable adjustment in either price or time. 

Councilmember Wilson asked if there are additional costs associated with the extension of the 
project completion date. Finance Director Beauchaine commented there is no additional cost 
since the contractor is paying for the additional materials. 

Councilmember Johnson said with horizontal boring you typically run an auger through and jack 
the pipe through each section and asked ifthat was the method used. Richard Behrens said 
because it involves Cal Trans property, they require a pilot casing and another pilot pipe gets 
installed from there. 

Councilmember Johnson said as he recalls from the State Lands Commission, everything will be 
contained within a 20 foot wide section and the channel is going to be down 60 feet. Mr. 
Behrens confirmed that he was correct. 

Councilmember Wilson asked if it is anticipated the work will be completed within the time 
allotted. Mr. Behrens said there is no reason to believe that it won't be and said Gonzales Boring 
and Tunneling. Inc., sub-contractor to Apex Drilling just completed the second set of pipe. 

City Manager Stretch commented that he felt the request for 5 additional days for completion of 
the project is reasonable and justified under Article 12 of the General Conditions as it is an 
unforeseen event and not the contractor's fault. 

Councilmember Johnson then questioned liquidated damages in which Finance Director 
Beauchaine said she would have to look that up and report back. 

Councilmember Marks stated she was reluctant to eliminate the PH monitor since we never 
know what we are going to have in the future as far as industry in Rio Dell. She said she would 
like to have an official opinion if this is the right way to go. Also, we may not need the PH 
monitor now but who's to say we won't need it in 6 months. 

4 



OCTOBER 15,2013 MINUTES 
Page 4 

Finance Director Beauchaine stated that she had an extensive conversation with Wastewater 
Superintendent Chicora and he explained that before construction of the new wastewater 
treatment plant, he had concerns with regard to the PH levels so a component had to be added to 
adjust the PH to meet current standards. He said initially it was expected that the City would 
need to monitor and adjust PH; however, since the effluent quality has improved significantly 
with the installation of the new treatment plant, that component is no longer needed. She noted 
that should something such as brewery come in, they would be required to pre-treat anything that 
entered into the system anyway. 

Councilmember Wilson asked what the cost savings was for elimination of this component. 
Finance Director Beauchaine explained the savings was $11,030.85. 

Motion was made by Johnson/Wilson to approve Change Order No.9 in the amount of 
-$7009.55 for work related to the Wastewater Treatment Plant Upgrade and Disposal Project. 
Motion carried 4-0. 

ORDINANCES/SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS/PUBLIC HEARINGS 

Approve Resolution No. 1212-2013 Approving and Adopting the Open Space and Conservation 
Element of the General Plan 
Community Development Director Caldwell provided a staff report and said what is being 
presented is the Draft Open Space and Conservation Element as a combined document. He said 
the current Open Space Element was adopted in 1972, and the Conservation Element in 2001 
although it does not meet current standards. 

Community Development Director Caldwell stated the State identifies what has to be addressed 
in this document and said the primary vision of the Open Space and Conservation Element is to 
maintain and encourage development that compliments the natural visual setting of the City. He 
said the Conservation Element guides the conservation, development, and utilization of natural 
resources such as water, forests, soils, rivers, mineral deposits, and others which the Open Space 
Element guides the comprehensive and long-range preservation and conservation of open space 
lands including parks. He noted that the Quimby Act sets the ratio for providing adequate open 
space for outdoor recreation which is 5 acres of parklands for every 1,000 residents. He said 
currently the City has approximately 12-13 acres of parkland but should have around 17.5 acres. 

Community Development Director Caldwell stated in 2009 the City adopted Parkland 
Dedication Fees for all residential planned development projects and the Planning Commission 
will be considering an amendment to those regulations so that they apply to all residential 
subdivisions, rather than just planned developments. He said the fees may be used for parkland 
acquisition and development. 

5 



OCTOBER 15,2013 MINUTES 
Page 5 

Next were review of Archeological Resources; Historic Buildings; Cultural Resources; Open 
Space for Public Health and Safety; Geologic/Seismic Hazards; Flood Hazards; Hydrology and 
Water Resources; Air Resources; and Energy Resources. 

Community Development Director Caldwell commented that energy consumption has increased 
significantly in Rio Dell since 2001 and said the City of Arcata has actually imposed a use tax on 
the excess electricity usage. 

Councilmember Marks asked staff to define again "preservation of natural resources." She said 
when she read this the first thing that came to mind is the Riverwalk along the Eel River in 
Fortuna and asked ifby adopting this Element if we will be restricting development near the 
rIver. 

Community Development Director Caldwell explained at the next Planning Commission 
meeting, the Commission will be considering the establishment of Environmentally Sensitive 
Habitat regulations and one of the things included in that ordinance is that within these 
streamside management areas is that trails be allowed as a permitted use. He explained that 
development within streamside management areas shall have setback requirements of 25 feet 
from riparian vegetation, and 50 feet from the stream transition line on either side of perennial 
streams. He noted that Department of Fish & Game and Department of Fish & Wilflife will have 
input on any proposed development. He referred to the Micheli property on Blue Slide Road that 
is currently for sale and said he encouraged the potential buyer to contact Fish & Game and the 
recommendation from Fish & Game is that there be a 150 foot setback from the edge of riparian 
vegetation and a 100 foot setback from the pond that Mr. Micheli installed which greatly restricts 
development of that parcel. He explained what the City is recommending, is something less that 
will allow development and at the same time protect riparian habitat. 

Councilmember Wilson questioned whether the Open Space Element is primarily aimed at new 
development or if it applies to existing development as well. He said this document basically 
says the City must protect its resources and at the same time we have citizens addressing the 
Council regarding river bar access. Also, the document allows for gravel operations on the river 
yet there are concerns expressed about the effects of sediment. He said there are things in the 
document that should be carefully considered regarding how we are going to protect the City's 
resources and at the same time, not take away the rights of citizens to enjoy the river bar. 

Community Development Director said there will undoubtedly be projects that come up where 
the applicant will want to reduce the setback requirements and where there will be competing 
policies but the idea is to find a balance. 

Councilmember Johnson commented on in stream gravel mining operations, and said he is not 
entirely sure we want to encourage mining operations from bridge to bridge. He said he has 
spent a lot of time in that area and we certainly don't want to mine where bedrock formations 
exist. 

6 



OCTOBER 15,2013 MINUTES 
Page 6 

Community Development Director stated that mining will not be allowed in those areas and 
pointed out that there used to be a channel which is no longer apparent. He commented that 
either he or the Planning Commission wants to slam the door on gravel operations. 

Councilmember Marks asked if there is a home that needs to be rebuilt due to fire that is located 
within an environmentally sensitive area ifthere will be a problem rebuilding. 

Community Development Caldwell stated there would probably not be a problem but they may 
be required to have a qualified biologist verify that the project will have no adverse effect on the 
environment. 

Councilmember Marks referred to the review of Building Permits in regard to the preservation 
and enhancement of structures built prior to 1960 and asked how this will impact some of these 
homes. 

Community Development Director Caldwell said there should be no impact unless the applicant 
is proposing major architectural changes. 

Motion was made by Wilson to approve Resolution No. 1212-2013 Approving and Adopting the 
Open Space and Conservation Element of the General Plan. 

Mayor Thompson called for a second to the motion on the floor. 

Councilmember Marks asked what will happen if someone comes to the City and has questions 
about gravel operations on the river bar. Community Development Director Caldwell explained 
if the Open Space and Conservation Element is adopted, it becomes policy. He said although the 
Element encourages gravel operations, there is a program EIR on the Eel River and any gravel 
operations must be consistent with that EIR. 

Councilmember Marks then seconded the motion. Motion carried 3-1; Councilmember Johnson 
casting the dissenting vote. 

REPORTS/STAFF COMMUNICATIONS 

City Manager Stretch reported on recent activities and events and said the City'S grant 
application for a non-motorized trail plan was not approved this funding cycle and said he will be 
reaching out to see how the application scored so we will be ready to re-submit during the next 
cycle; said he received a letter addressed to the City Council from Senator Alex Padilla asking 
for support of SB405 which would phase out single-use plastic bags in California, and asked 
council members if they wanted the item placed on the next agenda for consideration (council 
members agreed to place the matter on the November t h agenda); reported on the acquisition of 
a new Nissan Altima admin vehicle which he was able to acquire at $1,300 under the budgeted 

7 



OCTOBER 15, 2013 MINUTES 
Page 7 

amount and said staff will be setting up a mileage log so the appropriate departments are charged 
accordingly. 

Councilmember Marks asked ifhe will be encouraging staff to use the vehicle for work related 
trips. City Manager Stretch said that is the idea since the vehicle is estimated at 38MPG and the 
current I.R.S. mileage reimbursement rate is 56.5 cents per mile for use of personal vehicles. He 
pointed out that in the event of an accident while an employee is driving their own vehicle on 
City business; their auto insurance is the primary coverage. 

Councilmember Johnson asked if the Wildwood Avenue Streets cape Improvement Project is on 
time and budget. City Manager Stretch reported it is and there may even be a savings of around 
$3,000. He reported that 1 of the median trees had to be replaced and several of the shrubs 
arrived in poor condition. Also, the grass (sod) arrived brown and dry and had to be returned. 

Councilmember Johnson questioned the status on installation of the town clock. City Manager 
Stretch commented that the clock was delivered but was uncertain of the exact date for 
installation. 

Finance Director Beauchaine reported on recent activities in the finance department and said 
there is a lot going on with year-end reporting and preparation for the upcoming audit. 

Councilmember Marks asked if staff had the opportunity to contact US Bank to negotiate the fee 
for returned checks. Finance Director Beauchaine commented that she had discussed the matter 
with the bank and apparently there was a misunderstanding and that the City will be charged 
$6.00 for returned checks rather than $36.00. 

Community Development Director Caldwell reported on recent planning activities and said on 
the next Planning Commission agenda will be an amendment to Parking regulations; amendment 
to Design Review regulations; Parkland Dedication regulations; and establishment of 
Environmentally Sensitive Habitat area regulations. He also reported that he hopes to have the 
Draft Safety Element on the November Planning Commission agenda. 

Councilmember Wilson asked what constitutes a detached accessory building in regard to design 
review. Community Development Director Caldwell explained accessory buildings that do not 
exceed 120 square feet do not require a building permit, and that design review does not apply to 
residential structures; just commercial detached accessory structures. 

Councilmember Marks asked ifit would be possible to have the Wastewater Superintendent 
provide the Council with a report on PH monitoring. 

Councilmember Johnson asked to be excused from the next regular meeting as he will be out of 
town. 

8 



ADJOURNMENT 

OCTOBER 15,2013 MINUTES 
Page 8 

There being no further business to discuss, the meeting adjourned at 7:37 p.m. to the 
November 7, 2013 regular meeting. 

Jack Thompson, Mayor 
Attest: 

Karen Dunham, City Clerk 

9 



675 WildwoodAvenue 
Rio Dell, CA 95562 

TO: 

THROUGH: 

FROM: 

DATE: 

SUBJECT: 

Mayor and Members of the City Council 

Jim Streta'Manager 

Stephanie Beauchaine, Finance Director 2J:Y 
November 7, 2013 

WahlundlSequoia Construction Pay Request #20 

RECOMMENDATION 

Approve Pay Request 

BUDGETARY IMPACT 

Pay Request #20 in the amount of$556,520.84 will be funded through the State Water 
Resources Control Board (SWRCB) financing agreement project number C-06-7401-110 
totaling $12,980,859. 

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 

The work subject to this pay request is primarily related to the horizontal drilling of the 
WWTP effluent disposal line under the Eel River, and completion of the operations 
buildings at the public works corporation yard. 

Pay Request #20 has been approved for payment by the City'S Construction Manager and 
City Manager. 

10 



BEHRENS CONSTRUCTION AND INSPECTION SERVICES 
170 South Bank Chetco River Road 

To: Rio Dell City Council 
Jim Stretch, City Manager 

Brookings, OR 97415-8288 

(707) 696-4650 
rbehrens@rbehrens.org 

Stephanie Beauchaine, Finance Director 
Rick Chicora, Wastewater Superintendent 

From: Richard Behrens, Construction Manager 

Date: 10/3112013 

Project Name: Wastewater Treatment Plant Upgrade and Disposal Project 

The WWTP project is now into the twentieth month of progress. The contractor has 
completed all phases of the bio-tank processes, the Chlorine Contact Basin and Effluent 
Pumping Station. The Aqua Sierra control system is installed and operational. Work is 
nearing completion the disposal site. The transmission line is complete from the river crossing 
to the treatment plant and pavement patching is nearly complete. The Therma-Flite sludge 
dryer system has been completed. Underground piping and valves have been installed and the 
plant switchover is complete and in operation. The Blower Building is complete and in 
operation. Electrical/mechanical systems are nearly complete and cut-over of existing 
electrical systems is completed. Construction of the new Operations Building is nearing 
completion and is being occupied by staff. Demolition of existing process piping and pumps 
is nearly complete. The under-river transmission line has been bored and the reaming process 
has started, to be followed by the pulling ofthe transmission line. The Jack and Bore process 
under the northbound lanes ofHwy 101 has begun. Wahlund has provided, at no cost, the 
leaching pond which was used during the summer months awaiting the completion of the 
under-river transmission line. 
Progress Payment Request No. 20 is attached. This pay request is based on the bid schedule 
breakdown provided by the contractor, Wahlund Construction, Inc.! Sequoia Construction 
Specialties, and the actual quantities of work completed and materials delivered to site. 

There have been nine approved Change Orders completed to date, totaling an amount of 
$138,531.42. The adjusted contract amount to date is $10,769,531.42. The total billed (net 
amount) thru Progress Pay Request No. 20, less retainer, is $9,327,202.29. 

1 recommend payment to Wahlund Construction, Inc.,! Sequoia Construction Specialties for 
Progress Pay Request No. 20 in the amount of$556,520.84, that also takes into account a 5% 
retention. Payment to the contractors is due within 20 days of receipt of each Application for 
Payment. Progress Payment Request No. 20 was approved 10/31/2013. 

1 1 



cc: 
Craig Olson, HDR Inc. 
Bret Rinehart, Wahlund Construction, Inc. 
Brian Pritchard, Sequoia Construction Specialties 

12 



Progress Payment Summary 
Owner: City of Rio Dell 
Project Title : Rio Dell Wastewater Treatment Plant 

Upgrade and Disposal 

1. Analysis of Authorized Contract Amount to Date 
a. Authorized Contract Work Amount 
b. Total Change Orders Work Amount 

c. Adjusted Contract Amount to Date 

2. Analysis of Work Performed 
a. Contract and Change Orders Performed to Date 
b. Retainer, 5% 
c. Net Contract Work to Date 
d. Previous Billed 

e. Balance Due This Period 

3. Certification of Contractor 

Job #: 
Payment #: 

Period Ending: 

24-11 
20 

31-0ct-13 

$ 10,631,000 .00 
$ 138,531.42 

$ 10,769,531 .42 

$ 9,818,107.67 
$ 490,905.38 
$ 9,327,202.29 
$ 8,770,681.45 

$ 556,520.84 

According to the best of my knowledge and be lief, I certify that all items and amounts shown on the 
Schedule of Values are correct; that all work has been performed and/or material supplied in full accordance 
with the requ irements of the referenced Contract, and/or duly authorized deviations, substitutions, 
alterations, and/or additions. 

All previous progress payments received on account of the Work have been applied on account to 
discharge Contractor's legitimate obligations associated with prior Applications for Payment. 

Wahlund Construction , Inc.,! 
Seguoia Construction Specialties 

Contractor Authorized Representative 

Date: 10/25/2013 Title:. Joint Venture Administrator 
------------~~~~~------------

4. Certification of Construction Manager 

I certify that I have checked and verified the above and foregoing Schedule of Values; that to the best of my 
knowledge and belief it is a true and correct statement of work performed and/or material supplied by the 
Contractor; that all work and/or material included in this Progress Payment Summary has been inspected by 
me and/or my duly uthorized representative or assistants and that it has been performed and/or supplied in 
full accor.... requirements of the referenced contract; and that the payment due to the Contractol 
is correct basis of work performed and/or material supplied to date. 

Date: 

5. Approval for Payment 

~~-ItY Manager 
Date ---,-(-,,-O_--=.J~' ---"c....3 ___ _ 

10/28/2013 

13 



WAIILUND CONSTRUCTION, INC.! 
SE~UOIA CONS'TRUCTION SPECIAL'rIES 

"-

,l.fOJJJI r '{,Illllle 

Llccnsc No. H55H 1·1· 
Eureka Office' 707-268-0150 Fax 707-268-0137 

To City of RIo Dell 

675 Wildwood Avenue 

R Dell C n . 95562 10 alomla 

Item Description of Item Oty Unit Unit Cost 

1 Bid Item 1 

Sheellllg, shOring and braCing or equivalenl melhod conforming 
10 applicable safely order __ ,-- LS $ 5,000 .00 _$ 

Bid Item 1 Total $ 

2 Bid Item 2 --- --
Over-excavallon and disposal of undesirable malerial and 
compaclion of fill malenal under biological trealmenl facilily as 
defined in Seclion 02200 of Ihe speciflCalions. 2,500 CY 3500 $ 

Bid Item 2 Total $ 

3 Bid lIem3 

14- inch recycled waler pipeline from Station 1+50 (+1-) 10 Sialior 
101+50 (+1-), including all appurtenances as required 10 

Total Cosl 

5,ooo.C>.Q. 

5,000.00 

87,500.00 

87,500.00 

__ ~m~te ~ork . 10,OQO _ ~~ -$ 108.00 .1 __ 1_,080 ,OOO .~_ -- - -
Bid Item 3 Total $ 1,080,000.00 

4 Bid Item 4 -.- - .------------

4.1 Surveying & Engineering Design 1 LS $ 68,250.00 $ 68,250.00 

4.2 Geotechnical Repor1 1 LS $ 42,525.00 $ 42 ,525.00 

4.3 SLC Lease, SEIR, Permitting, Cales, CEOA Plus, etc. 1 LS $ 71 ,000.00 $ 71,000.00 

4.4 Construction Administration 1 LS $ 58,800.00 $ 58,800.00 

4.5 Open Cut Casing & Pipe Installalion 1 LS $ 241,000.00 $ 241,000.00 

4.6 Jack & Bore Casing & Pipe Installation 1 LS $ 149,000.00 $ 149,OOO.00 

4.7 HOD Piping Installalion 1 LS $ 869,425.00 $ 869,425.00 

Bid Item 4 Total $ 1,500,000.00' 

5 Bid Item 5 

All work al disposal sile on north side of Eel River outside of 
Caltrans right-of-way. 

5.1 Site Clearing 1 LS $ 15,000.00 $ 15,000.00 

5.2 Earthwork 1 LS _$ _~9c475.oo _$ 289,475.00 -_.- --- --_.- ------
5.3 Distribution and Turnout Boxes 1 LS $ 15,000.00 $ 15,000.00 

5.4 Precast Concrete Pump Station 1 LS $ 28,000.00 $ 28,000.00 

WAHLUND CONSTRUCTION, INC'/SEQUOIA CONSTRUCTION SPECIALTIES -JV 2 of 11 

Qty 

100% 

2,500 

10,000 

90% 

100% 

100% 

25% 

0% 

0% 

0% 

100% 

1000/. 

100% 

1000/. 

Rio Dd[ VVastevvatter T r,ealt~nen:l 

PhllD.1t 1Upgrade and Disposal Pro],ec'l 
HDR Pwj.cd No. 152932 

Pay Request No .. ~o 

P d End' eno Ing' o 1 131/13 

Previous This Period Total To Date 

$ Qty $ Qty $ 

$ 5,000.00 0% $ 100% $ 5,000 00 

$ 5,000.00 $ - $ 5,000.00 

--

$ 87,500.00 0 2.500 

$ 87,500.00 $ - $ 

--

$ 1,080-,000.00. 

$ 1,080,000.00 

--

$ 61,425.00 10% $ 6,825.00 100% 

$ 42 ,525.00 0% $ - 100% 

$ 71 ,000.00 0% $ - 100% 

$ 14,700.00 25% $ 14,700.00 50% 

$ - 0% $ - 0% 

$ - 25% $ 37,250.00 25% 
-

$ - 50% $ 434 ,712.50 50% --
$ 189,650.00 $ 493,487.50 

-

$ 15,000.00 0% $ - 100% -
$ 289,475.00 0% $ - 100% ------- --
$ 15,000.00 0% $ - 100% 

$ 28,000.00 0% $ - 100% 

Jon NO 2·1-11 



-V1 

lO118/?OIJ 

5 5 Pump Station Base & EqUipment Pad 1 LS $ 6 ,82500 $ 6,82500 100% $ 6,825.00 00/0 $ • 1000/0 $ 6.B:!500 

5.6 Overflow Valve Concrete Pads 1 LS $ 20475.00 $ 20,47500 100% $ 20,475.00 0% $ • 100% $ :'>0,475.00 

5.7 Hydroseeding 1 LS $ 54,05925 $ 54,05925 100% $ 54,059.25 0% $ • 100% $ 54,059.25 

5.8 Submersible Non·Clog Tailwater Pumps 1 LS $ 32,38610 $ 32,38610 100% $ 32,386.10 0% $ • 100% $ 32,386.10 

1~~5~.9~fR=E=W~p~iP~in~g _______________ --------__ ------t-~1 --~L~S~~$~-1~5~0~,0~00~00~$~ ____ ~150~,OOO~~0~0~97~.~81~%~$~ __ ~1~46~,~71~7~.5=241_~0~oo~~~.~$~ _______ • __ ~9~7~8~1~%~~$~ __ ~146,71752 
5.10 DFD Piping 1 LS $ 145,00000 $ 145,000.00 100% $ 145,000.00 0% $ • 100% $ 145000.00 

5.11 Tailwater Pump Piping, Matenal 1 LS $ 20,00250 $ 20,002.50 _1_0_0% $ 20,002.50 0% $ _ _ • 100% $ 20,00:'>.50 

5.12 Tailwater Pump Piping· Labor 1 LS $ 7,381 50 $ 7,38150 100% $ 7,381.50 0% $ ___ ' 100% $ 7,38150 

5.13 Tailwater Pump Installation per 004 1 LS $ 6,460.65 $ 6,460.65 100% $ 6,460.65 0% $ ' _ 100% $ 6,46065 

5.14 HDGBarGrating2xperl/D03 1 LS $ 2,625.00 $ 2,625.00 100% $ 2,625.00 0% $ ___ . _ 100% $ 2,62500 

5.15 PVC Stilling Well per 004 1 J~ $ 2,31000 $ 2,31000 _1_0_0_%_ $ 2,310.00 0% $ _ .__ 100% $ 2,31000 

6 Bid Item 6 
All work as required per the MMRP as outlined in Specificalion 

Seclion 01560. 

7 Btd Item 7 

Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan and Implementation per 
SpecifICation Section 02271 . 

8 Bid Item 8 

All other work as indicated on the protect plans and defined In 
the project specifications. 

8.1 Bidding Requirements 

I-8.1.1 Performance & Payment Bond 

8.1.2 ~nce 

8.2 General Requirements 

.1-8.2.1 

~.2 .2 

8.2.3 

8.2.4 

8.2.5 

8.26 

Mobilization 

Demobilization 

Plumbing Mobilization 

Field Engineering & Surveying 

Administration Requirements 

Construction Schedutes 

I-8.2.7 Submittals 

8.2.8 Temporary Offices, Sanitation, etc. 

8.2.9 Project Sign 

8.2.10 Construction Photographs 

8.3 WWTP Silework 

~ Sludge Dfyin~ed Demol~ion 

_ 8.3.2 Misc. EXisting Tanks & Buildings Demolition 

8.3.3 Staging Area Earthwor~ & Grading 

8.3.4 Staging Area Temporary Fencing 

WAHLUND CONSTRUCTION. INC'/SEOUOIA CONSTRUCTION SPECIALTIES -JV 

Bid Item 5 Total $ 795,000.00 $ 791,717.52 $ • $ 791,717.52 

LS 

LS 

$ 7000000 $ 

Bid ttem 6 Total $ 

70,000.00 _ 95,--0/.,,-0 • • -'$ __ ~66,500 .oo 

70,000.00 $ 66,500.00 

$ 10,500 00 _$ •. ____ 1:.:0:.!.:,5~.:00=.00~ 95% $ 9,975.00 

Bid Item 7 Total $ 10,500.00 $ 9,975.00 

2% 

2% 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

-----11---

1,400.00 

1,400.00 

21000 

210.00 

--------0·---- -

-----11---- ------11--- --- -

97% $ 

97% 

$ 

$ 

$ 

1 LS $ 82,00000 $ ___ --=8:.::c2 ,O~ 100% $ 8.2,OOO.0!!. ~ _$ _____ ._ . 1000
/ $ 

1 LS $ 88,000.00 $ 88,000.00 _1_0_0_%_ t_.c..$ ___ 8,--8c:.,O_0_0_.00 __ 11_0~ $ . 100% $ 

Bidding Requirements Tota $ 170,000.00 $ 

------11 
LS $ 156,250.00 $ 156,250.00 100% $ 

LS $ 25,00000 $ ____ .::.25"',.::.000:.=.OQ. 0% $ 

LS $ 21 ,00000 _$ __ 21 ,OOO.OQ. 100% $ 

1 LS $ 10,00000 . $ ___ 1_0,000.00 99% $ 

1 LS $ 252,000.00 .$ 252 ,000.00 100% $ 

1 LS $ 2,000.00 $ __ ~OOO.OO 99% $ 

1 LS $ 18,00000 $ 18,000.00 99% $ 

1 LS $ 54,000.00 J 54 ,000.00 100% $ 

1 LS $ 1,500.00 $ 1,500.00 100% $ 

~ LS $ 50000 $ 500.00 100% $ 

General Requirements Total $ 540,250.00 $ 

LS $ 

LS $ 

LS $ 

LS $ 

45,750 .00 $ 

1845900 $ 

25,000.00 $ 

1,500.00 $ 

3 o f 11 

45,75000 100% $ 

1845900 100% $ 

25,000.00 100% $ 

1,500.00 100% $ 

170,000.00 $ 

156,250.00 ---:0~0/.~0_ 1~$~ ____ ' __ 1 
0% $ 

21,000.00 0% J __ .. __ . __ 
9,900.00 _1_0/~ :.$ ___ .:1_: OO.O.!!. 

252 000.00 ---:0:.,:0/..::.0 _I ..:':$~ ___ .....:...· __ II 
1,980.00 ~ .$. ____ -'=2,:0 •. ,00:. 

17,820.00 1% $ 180.00 

54,000.00 ~ $ 

1,500.00 0% $ • 

500 00 ~ .$_. ___ . 
514,950.00 

45,750.00 

18,459.00 

25,000.00 

1,500.00 

$ 300.00 

0% $ 

0% $ 

0% $ 

0% $ 

$ 

100% $ 

0% $ 

100% $ 

100% $ 

100% $ 

100% $ 

100% $ 

100% $ 

100% $ 

100% $ 

$ 

100% $ 

100% $ 

100% $ 

100% $ 

6790000 

67,900.00 

1018500 

10,185.00 

8200000 

88,00000 

170,000.00 

156,250.00 

21 ,000 00 

10,00000 

252,000.00 

2,000.00 

18,00000 

54,000.00 

1,500.00 

50000 

515,250.00 

45,75000 

18,459.00 

25,000.00 

1,50000 

IOU NO. 24-11 



-en 

lOUR/Lon 

8.35 HotMixAsphallPavlng 1 LS $ 38,287.20 $ 38,287.20 20% $ 7,657.44 0% $ - 20% $ 7,657.44 

_8.3.6 Canopy Slab @ CL2 Bldg 1 LS $ 5,25000 $ 5,250.00 100% $ 5,250.00 0% $ - 100% $ 5.250.00 

_ 8.3.7 Canopy Slab @ Dps Bldg 1 LS $ 7,35000 $ 7,35000 100% $ 7,350.00 0% $ - 100% $ 7,35000 

8.3.8 GeneratorSlab 1 _ LS $ 13,12500 $ 13,12500 100% $ 13,125.00 0% $ - 100% $ 13,12500 

~8~.=3~.9~C=L~2~M~ix=e~rC=o~n~c~re~l=e~R=eLPia~i~r ______________________ _4--~1~4-~L~S_4~$~--~4~,2~00~.0~0~$~----~4~,2~00~.00~~0~%~~$~---------~~1=00~o/c~0~$~----4~,~20~0~.00~~1~00=o/c~0~$~----~4,2oo.00 
8.3,1!!., Chern Storage Slab 1 LS $ 4,200 .00 $ 4,200.00 0%_ $__ __- _ 100% $ 4,200.00 100% $ 4,20000 

8.3.11 3 Steel Canopies 1 LS $ 36,16305 $ 36,16305 ---.100% $ __ 36,163 .0~ 0% $ - 100% $ 36,16305 

8.3.12 3 Bollards per C02 1 LS $ 2,702J O $ 2,702.70 --.!.QO'1'o_ .. $ _____ 2,702 .70 0% $ - 1000/0 $ 2,702.70 

_8l.13_ Static Mixer & Chlorine Injection Precast Vault 1 LS $ 16,50000 $ 16,500.00 100% .. $ ___ 16~500 .00 0% $ - 100% $ 16,50000 

8.3.14 Existing Control Room Door 1 LS $ 12,60000 .. $ 12,600.00 100% $ __ 12,600.00 0% $ - 100% $ 12,600.00 

8.315 Existing Control Room Roof l_---'-l __ 
J

_ LS $ 22,575.00 $ 22,575.00 ...!.00...!0 _ _ $ ___ 22,51.5.:...OQ. 0% $ - 100% $ 22,57500 

WWTP Sitework Total $ 253,661.95 $ 214,632.19 $ 8,400.00 $ 223,032.19 

8 .. 4 Yard Piping 

8.4.1 12" Eflluent Piping _ 

I- 8.4.2_ 12" Influent Piping 

8.4.3 6" Sludge Piping 

8.4 4 8" Backwash Piping 

8.4.5 Misc. Underground Piping, Tie-Ins, Demo, Etc. 

8.4 6 Static Mixer & Chlorine Injection VauH Piping - Material 

8.4.7 Static Mixer & Chlonne Injection Vault Piping - Labor 

8.5 Headworks 

8.5.1_ InOuent Pump Installation Jler SP10 

_ 8.5.2_ Grating Support Channel and New Grating per SP10 

8.5.3 ~adworks Pump PipJ!!g - Material 

8.5.~ Headworks Pump Piping - Labor 

8,6 Biological Treatment Facility 

1-8.6.1 Excavation 

8.6.2 Subgrade & Base Rock 

8.6.3 Tank Slab Form & Pour 

8 6.4 Tan~lab Rebar __ 

8.6.5 Tank Walls Form & Pour 

LS $ 

LS $ 

LS $ 

LS $ 

LS $ 

LS $ 

60,000.00 $ 

50,000.00 $ 

25,000.00 $ 

30,000-00 $ 

10,000-00 $ 

3,33900 $ 

60,000.00 100% $ 

50,000.00 100% $ 

25,000.00 50% $ 

30,000.00 3.47% $ 

10,000.00 

3,33900 

100% ~ 
100% $ 

60,000.00 0% $ 

50,000.00 0% $ 

12,50000 50% $ 

1,041.40 96.53% $ 

10,000.00 0% $ 

3,33900 0% $ 

- 100% $ 

- 100% $ 

12,500.00 100% $ 

28,958.60 100 00% $ 

- 100% $ 

- 100% $ 

LS $ 1,44375 $ 1,443.75 100% $ 1,443.75 0% $ - 100% $ 
-

Yard Piping Total $ 179,782.75 $ 138,324.15 $ 41,458.60 $ 

LS $ 

LS $ 

-----.. 1------1------------11---- ------------
6,46065 $ __ 6,460~ 100% ~. _____ 6.,i60 .6~ 0% .:.$, ________ - _ 

5,537.70 $ __ 5,537.70_ 1000/0 _$ 5 ,537.70 ~O~o/c:!'.o_I ..'!$~ ___ _=__- _ 1I 

100% $ 

100% $ 

LS $ 20,002.50 $ ___ 2Q~2 .50_ 100% _$ __ 20!OO~50 00/0 _$ - 100% $ 

LS_ $ 7,381.50 $ _~8L50 ....!.9Q..~ J 7d.8,..!.1 .:::·50:=..I .---..::0~%~L$~ ___ _=__- _ 11 100% $ 

Headworks Total $ 39,382.35 $ 39,382.35 $ - $ 

1 LS $ 

1 LS_ $ 

1 LS $ 

1 LS $ 

1 LS $ 

75,00000 $ 75,000.00 100% $ 

25,00000 1_$"--__ ..::25,000.00 100% $ 

262,50000 $ 262,50000 100% $ 

33075000 $ 330,750.00 100% $ 

682,50000 $ 682 ,500.00 100% $ 

75,000.00 0% $ 

25,00000 0% $ 

262,500.00 0% $ 

330,75000 0% $ 

682,500.00 0% $ 

309,750.00 .. $ 309,750.00 100% 5 ___ 3~,750.qQ, -.Sl.!~ _$ 

100% $ 

100% $ 

100% $ 

100% $ 

100% $ 

100% 

60,000.00 

50,000.00 

25,000.00 

30,000.00 

10,000.00 

3,33900 

1,443.75 

179,782.75 

6,460.65 

5,537.70 

20,002.50 

7,381.50 

39,382.35 

75,00000 

25,000.00 

262,500.00 

330,750.00 

682,500 00 

309,75000 
8.6.6 Tank Wa.!I~ .. Rebar~ _______________ .I_.......:1_ LS $ 
86.7 ~5?P~~~ills 1 -.!:..~ .J __ 52,50Q..Q9 _ _ $ ___ 5=-,2o~,5Q.0 .00 100% $ 52,500.00 0% .. $"--____ -_ 1-"-100% .. $_.. 52,500.00 

~6:~ ~~~~II_ ___ __ 1 ~S_ J ___ 7,500Pi>_ $ 7,§Q9.00 .....:..;loo:..::..;.o/c~o -1-""$'--__ 7"",;.50::.;0"".00=1 0% $ - 1000/0 $ 7,500,00 

_8.6.~ .. ~1.~!!1um SI~Jr wijh ~iling __ .. 1 LS _$ __ 20-,-245 OS .. $ 20,245.05 100% $ 20,245.05 0% $ 100% $ 20 ,~45 .05 
_~"~ 10 Ae!oIYI .. od_ E.quip.ment lnst~llation________ __ 1 ~ .. $_ 203,05425 $ 203,054.25 100% $ 203,054.25 0% $ - 100% $ 203,054 .25 

Pipe Connections Bio Treatment 12"INFP, 12"EFF, 8"LPA & 
8.6.11 4"LPA-SPOl &SP02-Material ___ .______ 1 _ LS _ $ __ 2~,407 . 75 _$ 

Pipe Connections Bio Treatment 12"INFP, 12"EFF, 8"LPA & 
8.6.1241-PA-SP01&SPO?-Labor _____ 1 LS _ $ __ 2~0~0 __ $ .. ___ 23,4~.50 loo%,.+-,,-$ __ -,2=-:3,,-,4-,-,0,-,4c:..-:::5~ 0% _$" ______ -__ l~~cyo_ $ _ 

B..!9.oo 0% .. $ _____ :-.. 100% ~ _ It-8.6.13 Selector Tank Piping - Material 

U 8.6.14 Selector Tank Piping - Labor_ 

WAHLUND CONSTRUCTlON,INC'/SEQUOIA CONSTRUCTION SPECIALTlES-JV 

_ l __ L~ __ $ ___ 819.00 --'$'--___ -'8~9Q. 100% $ __ 

LS $ 3,601 .50 100% $ 3,60~ _O~ _$ ___ .. --=_. _lOOCYo $ 

4 of 11 

28,40775 

23,404.50 

81900 

3,601 .50 

JOONO 24·11 



--....J 

8.6.15 CondUit and Pneumatic Systems - Malerial 

8 6.16 Conduil and Pneumatic Systems - Labor 

8,6.17 Aeration Tank Piping - Malerial 

l!J/ 2H/lOlJ 

1 LS $ 1,312,50 $ _ 1,312.50 100% $ 1,312.50 0% $ • 100% $ 1,312.50 

1 LS $ 8,100.75 $ 8,100.75 100% $ 8,100.75 0% $ - 100% $ 8,100.75 

1 LS $ 8,11125 $ 8,11125 1000/. $ 8,111.25 0% $ - 100% $ 8,111.25 

8.6.18 AeralionTankPiping-Labor _ 1 LS $ 20,16000 $ 20,160.00 100% $ 20,160.00 0% $ - 100% $ 20,113000 

~8~,6~,l~9~C~I~ar~ifi~le~r ~P~iiP~lln~Q-~M~a~le~n~'a~I ________________________ -+ __ ~1 __ 4-~L~S-+~$ ____ ~5~,7~8~5~.5O~~$~----~5~,7~8~5.~5~0f_l~0~0~%~~$----~5~,7~8~5~.5~0~~OO/'~.~~$~------~·~i~1~00~·~~~$~----~5 ,785~ 
8.6.20 Clarifier Piping _ Labor 1 LS $ 7,203,00 $ 7,203.00 100% $ 7,203.00 0% $ ____ - 100% $ 7,203,00 

. 8.6.21 Digesler Tank Piping _ Material 1 LS $ 5,323.50 $ 5,323.50 100% $ 5,323.50 0% $__ _- 100% $ 5,32350 

8.6.22 Digesler Tank Piping _ Labo~ 1 LS $ 16,290.75 $ 16,290.75 100% $ 16,290.75 0%_ .$__ _ - . 100% $ 16,29075 

8.6.23 6"SL, 2W, 12"LPA, 4"SL - SPOl • Material 1 LS $ 58,338.00 $ 58,338.00 100% $ 58,338,00 0% $ ___ - _ 100% $ 58,33800 

8.6.24 6"SL, 2W, 12"LPA, 4"SL - SPOl _ Labor 1 LS $ 34,156.50 $ 34,156.50 ....!,ooy. $ 34,156.50 0% .$___ - 100% $ 34 ,15650 

86.25 7 Sch 10 Stainless LPA Crossovers per SP02 

8.6,26 9 Hose Racks per SPOl 

f- 8.7 Blower Building 

_8.7.1_ Earthwork 

8.7.2_ Blower Building Concrele 

8 7,3 Concrete Masonry 

8.7.4 Roof Struclure 

8.7.5 Doors 

8.76 New Blowers in Blower Building 

8.7.7 Valves and Supports SP20 • Material Only 

8.7.8 Blower Piping to Mech. Coupling Outside Blower Bldg 

8.7.9 2 Bollards per SP19 

8.7.10 HVAC 

8,8 Operallons Building 

8,8.1 Basement Gravel Fill 

8.8.2 Concrete Infill 

8.8.3 Inlerior Framing 

8.8.4 ~all 

8,8.5 Doors & Windows 

_ 8.8.6 _ Roof 

8.8.7 Cabinelry 

8.8.8 Misc. Finishes 

8.8.9 Plumbing M04 - Rou!!!!.ln 

8 8.10 .~umbing M04 - Top·Oul 

8 8,11 Plumbing M04 - Tnm 

8,9 _ Effluent Pumping Station I Chlorine Contact Basin 

8 9 1 Siruciure Demolillon 

8.9.2 Install Efnuenl Pumps & Chlonne Sample Pump 

8.9 3 New HOPE Panels al exisling baffle frames 

8.9 4 . FRP Grating per X08 

1 LS $ 9,483.60 $ 9,483,60 100% $ 9,483.60 0% $ - _ 100% $ 9,483.60 

1 LS $ 7,087.50 $ 7,087.50 100% $ 7,087.50 ....Q%_ .$ ___ ._- _ 100% $ 7,087.50 

Biological Treatment Total $ 2,206,384.90 $ 2,206,384,90 $ - $ 2,206,384.90 

1 LS $ 5,000 00 $ 5,000 00 ..!!l~ _$ ___ 5,000.00 0% $ -

1 LS.J _ 36,750.00 $ 36,75000 100% J__ 36,750.00. 0% $ ____ - _ 

1 LS $ 20,947.50 $ 20,947.50 100% _$ ____ 20,947.50 0% $__ -

1 LS $ 42,00000 .$ 42,00000 100% $ _____ 42,.!!-00.00 0% $__ _- _ 

1 LS $ 7,035.00 $ 7,03500 100% $ 7,035 ___ 00_ ....Q~ $___ -

1 I~ $ 6,460,65 $ 6,46065 100% $ 6,460c65 0% ..=$. ___ _ 

1 LS $ 2,798.25 $ 2,798.25 100% $ 2,798,25 .0% .$'-____ -_ 
1 LS $ 8,190.00 $ 8,19.0 .0.0 _1""00-"-%"'--11 -'$"-_--=80 ,,_10.:;9,:.0.=.00. .0% _$· _____ -_ 1 

1 LS $ 2,086.35 $ 2,.086.35 100% $ 

__ ~ __ LS $ 13,67940 $ 13,679.4.0 75% $ 

Blower Building Total $ 144,947.15 $ 

1 LS $ 5,.0.0.0 . .0.0 .$'--__ ~5,~ . .o.o 100% $ 

1 LS $ 15,75.0 . .0.0 _$ 15,75.0 . .0.0 100% $ 

__ 1_ LS $ 15,75.0.00 $ 15,75.0 . .0.0 100% $ 

1 LS $ 6,300.00 $ 6,300.00 100% $ 

1 LS $ 16,80.0.00 _$ __ 1_6,800.00 100% $ 

1 LS $ 4,2.00.00 $ 4,2.0.0.00 100% $ 

1 LS $ 11,550.00 _$ 11,55.0 . .00 100% $ 

1 LS_ $ 21,00000 _$ 21,000.00 90% $ 

1 LS $ 8,263 .50 1.$"'--__ ~8,2..63..:..5.Q 100%_ $ 

1 LS $ 21,273.00 $ 21 ,273,00 100% $ 

,---=-1 __ J.....!LS_ $ ____ 9,975.00 $ 9,975 . .00 0% $ 

Operations Building Total $ 135,861.5.0 $ 

LS 

LS 

LS 

LS 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

14,17500 $ 

6,46065 $ 

6,260.10 $ 

6,825.00 $ 

14,17500 

6,460,65 

6,260.1 0 

6,825.00 

100% $ 

100% $ 

l00~ $ 

100~ $ 

2,086.3§. 0% $__ --= _ 
10,259.5~ 25%_ $ __ 3,419.85_ 

141,527.3.0 $ 3,419.85 

5,000.00 0% $ 

15,750.00 0% $ 

15,750.00 0% $ 

6,300.00 0% $ 

0% $ 

0% $ 

0% $ 

16,800.00 

4,200.00 

11,550.00 

18,900.00 

8,263.50 

21,273.00 

5% 1. $:!-___ l,050.0.o 

123,786.5.0 

14,175.00 

6,46.0.65 

6,260.10 

6,825.00 

0% $ 

0% $ 

100% $ 

0% 

0% 

0% 

0% 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

9,975.00 

11,.025.0.0 

1.00% $ 

100% $ 

100% $ 
100% $ 

100% $ 

100% $ 

100% $ 

100% $ 

100% $ 

100% $ 

$ 

100% $ 

100% $ 

1.00% $ 

100% $ 

100% $ 

100% $ 

100% $ 

95% $ 

100% $ 

100% $ 

...!OO% $ 

$ 

1.0.0% $ 

1.0.0% $ 

100% $ 

100% $ 

5,00000 

36,75000 

20,947.50 

42,000.00 

7,035 . .00 

6,413.0.65 

2,798.25 

8,19000 

2,08635 

13,679.40 

144,947.15 

5,00.0.00 

15,750.00 

15,75000 

6,3.0000 

16,800 00 

4,20000 

11,55000 

19,95000 

8,263,50 

21,27300 

9,97500 

134,811.50 

1417500 

6,46.0 65 

6,260.10 

6,825.00 

WAHLUND CONSTRucnON,INC'/SEQUOIA CONSTRUCTION SPECIALTIES -JV 5 of It lOB NO 24·11 



...... 
00 

8.9.5 Weir Plale per D/SP23 

8.9.6 . PVC Slitting Well per SP23 

_ ..... _ ... __ . ___ .____ l~S __ ..! 
___ .. __________ 1 _ LS $ 

2.625<J!l _$ _____ 2 .6?~00. 100% _$ ___ 2.625..:.~ 0% $ . __ .. _ .. __ 

2.~10 .00_ $ . ____ . .2,310.00 100% _ J ___ 2..310.~ _ O.!,,- _$. _____ - _ 

8.9.7 Graling Support Channel andN~~.~rating p~.!.S~~3 _.___ 1 LS $ __ ._5.l.5~~ 7~, $ 

100% $ 

100% ~ 

10/25/.'0 1 ) 

2.6~5 00 

2.31000 

5 .53770 
8.9.8 Pipe Supports with U Bolls A/COS _ ________ ___ 1 _~ __ $ _ 1.84590 _$. ___ .. ___ 1.845.JlO ...!O~_ .$"--__ ...!.1 ~.8'_'4 "-5 :::.9"-O 0% $ __ . __ .. :.....- 100% $ 1 84590 

8.9.9 ErRuent Pump Piping - Material 1 LS $ 22.87950 $ 22.879:50: 100% $ 22.879.50 0% $ - 100% ~ ~2.879 50 

.8.9.10_ Etnuenl Pump Piping - Labor _. _______ . __ ._ 1 LS .~ __ 9.093 00 .$ _. __ ._.il.09~.QO _100% $ 9.093.~_ 0% $ __ . __ -___ 100.%_ .$ _. 9 ,09300 

8.9.11 ErRuent Pump Station 2W Piping.:...M_at!'l!ia'-____ . __ 1 _ L? __ $ ___ 4.898 .25 _$. ___ 4.898.25 . ...1.00% $ 4.1I.9!1 .. 25 0% J ______ -_ ....!oo%_.$ 4.898.25 

8.9.12 ErRuent Pump Slation 2WPipi!1g::.!:~ bor___ _ ___ _ ~L-~~ $_ _?223]5_ $ __ . ____ 5.~2~J.~ ..!90% _~ 5.223.75 0% ___ $ ______ , __ 100%_.$ 5.22375 

Effluent Pump Station Total $ 88.133.85 $ 88.133.85 $ - $ 88.133.85 

~.10 Equipment Procurement _____ . ________ 1------1--------.11----1-------11--- _____________ ... 

_B..1QJ.. ~~1!!!!..al_E_quip.!"!'!'.!. &_Mech~!1i.~IB~quif!!.~..!!ls__ __ 1 LS _$ __ 5...QQO.00_ $ 5.00Q..00 1000/0 J ___ 5.!JOO.OQ 0% _$ _____ -_ R-'l<J!l~_.$ 

8.10.2 Sl!b.!!1 ersib!I!.~9n:C_log~"ue.~I.~~mps __ . 1 _L~ J---.?L.~9L~ $ ___ 5::c..c7,-,-.~~r:....5O_ 100% $ 57.~97 .5O 0% $_ _. - 100% $_ 

JlJ9.3 _ ~bmersible Non.Clog Ef~lJ~nl.Pur.!1ps ___ .. _ _ _ ___ 1 _~~ _$ ___ S}.691. SO J ___ .::.S7~.6!!lS..Q. "'!'qQo/O!.. _$"--_ -'S:.;.7 .697.50 ~.$ ____ . _-_ J QQ!D _ _ $ . _ 

8.10.4 F:'!!£kageJ~iolog.ic~I _Tre_alme~!..~acilily _____ .____ 1 _L~ j_l~63~759J5_ J ___ 1.563,Z?9.75 1000/'!.. _$ __ 1.563.759.75 0% _$ - ~ ...!.OO~~ _ $ _ 

8.10.5 ~lI.!ic_Mixer ____ ._______ __ . __ 1 _ LS $ 5.910.45_ $ 5.910.45 100% $ 5.910.45 0% j - ....! OO%_._$ 

5.000.00 

_ 57.697.50 

57.697.50 

1.563.759.75 

... 5.91 045 

17.00000 8.10.6 La~~I!?ry_~~as~wllr!'l.~p~~!!I!u~ and-'~_ql!ipm~n.1 1 LS J~QO.<!c9.<J. $ 17.000.00 100% $ 17.000.00 ~% _$ ______ - _ 100% $ ..... 

_8:!0~7_Samp.!i!1g,.!:~~.a_".P_lI!Ionil~rJ~g.E:_ql!iI'~~J__________ 1 LS _$ __ .-.l53 .90_ $ 753.90 100% $ 753.90 -.9J,,- _$ _____ - _ l00~ __ $ 

8.10.8 t:BP Slop ~~J~~and ~P C~emical Melerifi9 Enclo~.~~___ 1 LS _$ __ 6~9.i.6.9~_ .$ ~~~!3..:.~ 85.61% $ 53.890.05 r1.4.39% $ ___ ~056.~ 1OO_~~ _$ 

810.9 C!!.~~'?III M~~f!l:ingEquJp~!!!",____ . ____ __ 1_,~~~77~S.6. _$ 19, 778.86 ~ $ - 100% .$ ___ 1~.I?~86. _100~'!.. _$ _ 
EqUipment Total $ 1.790.544.95 $ 1.761.709.15 $ 28.835.80 $ 

_.8.~ Palntln9 ---I-------I--------II ---I-------H---I------ -- -. 
J!J.!J..... ~Ei~illg~and ~rs ___ . ______________ _ 1 LS J __ l §.382 50_ ..:'$'--___ 1'-'5cc;.3:c;:8,-=2=5O_ _1:...:00'---"%:.... 1 .:c$---'-'15~ .•. 3::.;8:.:2~.5O:c-- 0% _$. _____ -_.11 ...:100% $ _ 

8.11.2 ei~. ~I!!!~iscellane0l!s _____________ ,, __ 1'---' LS $ 15.382 .50 __ $ ___ -'1-=5".c3c8~.::.2.;.:;.5.::.0 100% $ 15.382.50 _ Q'ro_ $ - 100% _$ ... 

Painting Total $ 30.765.00 $ 30.765.00 $ - $ 

8.12 Electrical 
~---I--'------ - ·--------------------------11 ----------1·--------

753.90 

62.946.99 

19.778.86 

1.790.544 .95 

15.382 .50 

15.382.50 

30.765.00 

8.1 2.1 Generat."o'-r __________ .__________ 1 -=L=S'_I.:c$-...:1",,7.;:.3:.o,8§3.75_ ~ 173,853.75 1000/0 _$ 173,853.75 _ 0_%_ $. _______ - _ 100% _$ ._ 173,853.75 

8.12.2 Lighl Fixtures 1 LS $ 24.44085 $ 24.440.85 100% $ 24.440.85 0% $ - 100% $ 24.440.85 

~8~.1~2~.3~A~~q~lu~a~S~ie~rr~a~C~0~n~lr~o~ls~------------___ +_--'-1--+_=L~S_+~$--...:1-'4~7~.3=8=3.=2=5~$----'1-'4~7~.3=83=.=2.::.5t-::c..c98~o/c;.:;.D_+~$--~14~4~4~3~5~.5~9,r...:2~o/c~D_;-'$~-~2~.9=4~7~.6~7~..:.1=00~o/c~D~$~--...:1~4~7.38~2~ 

~8~.1~2~. 4~M~o~l~or~C~o~n~lr~0~IC~e~n~le~r~s.~P-'a~n~e~Is~.T::.;r~a~ns=~~or~me~rs~.~E~IC~. ____ _+-~1-+_=L~S_+~$-~2~2.::.2.~2~4~7.=20=+~$--~2~2=2~.2~4~7.=2.::.0ir-l~00~%~~$--2=2:c;:2~.2~4~7~.2~0~-0~o/c~o_;-'$~-----_;.r..:.l0=0~o/c~D1~$~--~2~2~2.l..247 .20 
8.12.5 Underoround Trenchino, Backfill. Pads. Conduil 1 LS $ 143.079.30 $ 143.079.30 100% $ 143.079.30 0% $ - 100% $ 143.079.lQ. 

Eleclrical Demo and New Work in Conlrol Bldg. Eleclric Bldg. 
~8~. 1~2~.6~B~low~e~r~B~Id~ga~n~d~O~~~'e~ra~li~o~ns~B~ld~Q ___________ _+-..:.l--+_=LS~~$--=6.::.0.~2~4~1.=65=+=$---~6=0~.2~41~.=65~-9=9~o/c.::.D_r$~-~5~9~6:c;:3~9~.2~3ir-l~o/c;.:;.D_;~$~---60~2~.4~2~~100~o/c~D~$~--~6~~ 165 

8.12.7 Headworks. EtnuenlPumps ChlorineEleclric 1 LS $ 11.550.00 $ 11 .550.00 100% $ 11.550.00 0% $ - 100% $ 11 .550.00 

~8~.1~2~.8~~~·~;po~ls=al~S~n~e~E~Ie~c~ln~·c~N~o~t~C~o=u~nl~~~gP~a~n=e=ls__' ________ +---'-1_+_=L.::.S_+=$----.;:.6~. 8.::.2.::.5.;.:;.0.::.0~$-__ -=6~.8=2.::.5.;.:;.OO~-1'-'00~%:....r:c$----'6~.8=2:c;:5~.00~r_0=o/c;.:;.o_;r$~-----~~1=00.::.D;.:;.~~$~---~6.~2?~~ 

~8~. 1~2~.9~J~o~b~M~o~v~e-~ln~Te~m~lp~P~ow~e~r----------___ _+-...!.1-1-~L=S_t~$--~3~.6~75=.~00=t~$~--~3~.6~7=5.~00=t-l~00~%~~$---~3~.6~7~5~.00~r_0=o/c~D~~$~---~-~~1~00~o/c~D~$~-~3G75.00 

~8.~1~2.~1~OfS~e~t~M~a~in~S~W~n~c~h~bo~a~rd~.~S~e~N~ic~e~.~M~C~C~2'--________ _+-...!.1-1-~L=S_t~$---=3=6~.6=2=6.~1=0~$~--~3=6~.6=2=6.~1=Oirl~00~%~~$--...:3~6~.6~2~6~.1~04r...:0=%~~$~-__ __'-~1r_'_1~00~o/c~D~$~-~36~~~....!P-

~8.~1~2.~1~1~H~o~o~k~-U~Jp~N~e~w~M~o~lo~rs~--------------____ i---'-1 __ J-=L=S-L~$ __ --'-1=0~.3=63=.~5=0~$-------'1=0~.3=63=.=50~-1~00~%~~$ ____ 1~0~.3~6~3~.5O~r-0=o/c~0~~$"--________ -~Ir..:.l0~0~~~D~$~--~1~0.3~3 .5~ 
Electrical Total $ 840.285.60 $ 836.735.52 $ 3.550.08 $ 840.285.60 

Bid Item 8 Total $ 6.420.000.00 $ 6.266.330.91 $ 96.989.33 $ 6.363.320.24 

~-=9--~B~I~d~lt~e~m~9~--------------------------------_+----_f----+_----------+_------------~~----_r------------'r----1-----------~~--_1------------
All work as required 10 inslall the Indirecl Sludge Dryer Syslem 
as defined in Addendum No.3. 

~~9~. 1~~A~d~m~i~ni~~~ra~l~io~n~R~e~qlui~rn~me~n~ls~------------________ -+ __ -'1 __ 1-~L=S_+~$--~2~0~.000==~. 00~~$~----~2~0~.000~.~00~f-l~00~%~~$----...:2~0~.00~0~.00~~0=o/c~D~~$~--------'-~I.~1OO~o/c~D.r'$--'--~?0.00000 

9.2 Indireci Slud.ge DryerSyslem 1 '-'L:::S:........o~$~....:::55:.:8:..c, 9::.c7c..:9:....1~5'-'-'$~ __ ::::55~8::.,;.9::.c7c::9"_.1~5:.JL~100~%"'_l_"$~_~558.979.15 0% $ - 100% $ 558.97915 

WAHLUND CONSTRUCTION. INC'/SEQUOIA CONSTRUCTION SPECIALTIES ·JV 60111 Ion NO 24·11 



10/28/2013 

9.3 Demolilion 1 LS $ 5,25000 $ 5,250.00 100% $ 5,250.00 0% $ 100% $ 5,25000 

9.4 _ Concrele Slab 1 LS $ 21 ,00000 $ 21 ,000.00 100% $ 21 ,000.00 0% $ - 100% $ 21,000.00 

9.5 Decrease Bio Tank Size 1 LS $ (45,15000) $ 45,15000 100% $ (45,150.00 0% $ - 100% $ (45: 150 00 

9.6 Paving 1 LS $ 3,300.00 $ 3,300.00 .- 1000/0 $ 3,300.00 0% $ - 100% $ 3,300 00 

9.7 Gas, Waler, Drain"" Misc. Pipifl!l ror Sludge Dryer - Malerial 1 LS $ 2,903 .25 $ 2,903.25 100% $ 2,903.25 0% $ - 100% $ 2,90325 

9.8 Gas, Waler, Drain"" Misc Piping ror Sludge Dryer - Labor 1 LS $ 4,30500 $ 4,30500 100% $- __ 4,3Q?OQ 0% $ - 100% $ 4,30500 - -
99 _ SlUdge Dryer Syslem Inslallalion 1 LS $ 33,143.25 $ 33,143.25 100% _$ __ 33~3.25 0% $ - 100% $ 33,14325 

9.10 Sludge Dryer Venting -1 LS $ 4971435 $ 49 ,71435 100% $ 49,714.35 0% $ 100% $ 49.714.35 

9.11 Doors 1 LS $ 9,555.00 $ 9 ,55500 - 100% _$ 9 ,555.00 0% $ - 100% $ 9 ,55500 -
Bid Item 9 Total $ 663,000.00 $ 663,000.00 $ - $ 663,000.00 

TOTAL $ 10,631,000.00 $ 9,159,673.42 $ 592,086,83 $ 9,751 ,760.25 

Original Conlracl Amounl $ 10,631 ,000.00 

Tolal Change Orders $ 138,53142 

Tolal Coniraci + Change Orders $ 10,769,531.42 
Conlracl Work + Change Orders Performed To Dale $ 9,818,107.67 

Work To Dale Minus 5% Relenlion $ 9,327,202 .29 

Previous Billed Less 5% Relenlion $ 8,770,681.45 

Work To Dale Minus Previous Billed $ 556,520.84 

TOTAL AMOUNT DUE $ 556,520.84 

WAHLUNO CONSTRUCTION, INC'/SEQUOIA CONSTRUCTION SPECIALTIES .JV 7 of 11 JOB NO. 24·1\ 



CITY OF 

675 Wildwood AI-'el1ue 
Rio Dell, CA 95562 ~ DELL 

TO: Mayor and Members of the City Council 

THROUGH: Jim &. City Manager 

FROM: Stephanie Beauchaine, Finance Director 

DATE: November 7,2013 

SUBJECT: WWTP Project Construction Management Contract extension 

RECOMMENDATION 

-=:r 
CAurORMA 

Authorize the City Manager to execute a contract amendment extending construction 
management services through December 31, 2013. 

BUDGETARY IMPACT 

Construction Management and Inspection totals $18,000 per month. 

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 

At the September 3rd meeting the City Council voted to approve WWTP Project Change 
Order No.7 re-routing the wastewater effluent pipeline under the Eel River as opposed to 
crossing through the northbound Caltrans Bridge. 

On October 15th the Council approved Change Order No.9 which included a time 
extension for completion and connection of the effluent pipeline. The projected 
completion date is no later than 12/31/2013. 

Currently the Construction Management Contract only extends through the month of 
October. Staff recommend that the City execute a contract amendment extending 
construction management and inspection services through the month of December. The 
terms and conditions will remain unchanged. All costs are funded under the SWRCB 
project funding agreement. 

20 



675 Wildwood Al-'el1l1e 
Rio Dell, CA 95562 

TO: Mayor and Members of the City Council 

THROUGH: Jim Stretch, City ManaO 

FROM: Stephanie Beauchaine, Finance Director 

DATE: November 5,2013 

SUBJECT: Y -T -D Budget Variance Report by Fund Type and Comparative Balance 
Sheet for the year ending June 30, 2013 

RECOMMENDATION 
Receive and File 

BUDGETARY IMPACT 
None. 

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 
Please find attached a copy of the Y-T-D Budget Variance Report by Fund Type and 
Comparative Balance Sheet for the year ending June 30, 2013 for your review. 

The Comparative Balance Sheet indicates that total Assets have increased by 
$5,850,405.19 largely due to the addition of Construction in Progress Wastewater 
Treatment Plant (WWTP) assets, and increased cash on hand. Annual Depreciation 
however, continues to erode asset balances each year as Ie currently are not collecting 
sufficient revenues to fund depreciation (replacement of aging infrastructure and 
equipment). Staffrecomrnends we evaluate the City's depreciation funding options in the 
near future. 

Liabilities have increased by $5,382,788.36. Accounts Payable has been reduced 
significantly in comparison to the prior year as WWTP project payments have decreased 
significantly. As of June 30th the WWTP bridge loan has a zero balance, and a Loan 
Payable to the State Water Resources Control Board for the WWTP has been booked. 

Fund balance has increased by $467,616.83 which is largely a reflection of the WWTP 
project activity. Overall the City has increased assets, increased liabilities, and increased 

21 



Fund balance in comparison to the prior year. The City's financial condition continues to 
improve as fund balance increases. The detailed report is attached. 

The Y-T-D Budget Variance Reports for the Year Ending June 30,2013 show 79% of 
revenues budgeted were received, and 79% of funds appropriated were expended. 
Revenues and expenditures for the year are significantly less than projected resulting 
from the delay of three (3) Capital Projects. The City's Safe Routes to School and 
Wildwood Transportation Enhancement Projects were both fully budgeted for the 12/13 
fiscal-year, but did not begin construction until the next budget cycle. The WWTP 
Project schedule was delayed due to a change in the effluent pipeline alignment which 
also contributed to less expenditures and grant reimbursements than anticipated. There 
were multiple accounts that were over budget including personnel expenses, electricity, 
and gas & oil. However, the overall budget is balanced and performed within the 
parameters of the appropriations provided. The detailed report is attached for review. 

At this time the figures in both reports are un-audited and may change slightly during the 
audit process. Staff will provide final reports after the completion of the audit and a final 
budget adjustment will also be prepared for the Council's approval at that time. 

22 



Run: 10/22/2013 at 4:03 PM 

Assets 
1011 Cash - General Checking 
1020 Cash - Petty Cash 
1030 Cash - Change Drawer 
103 1 Cash - Change Drawer 2 
1032 Cash - Change Drawer 3 

1033 Cash - Change Drawer 4 

1050 Cash - Payroll Checking 
1060 Cash - Undeposited Funds 
1070 Cash - Edward Jones CDBG Program 
Income 
1080 Investment - LAIF Savings 
1140 Prepaid 
1320 Notes Receivable 
1400 Accts Receivable 
1415 Sewer assessment Receivable 
1420 Accts Receivable - Utility Bill. Dist 
1423 Accounts Receivable CDBG 
1424 Accts Receivable- Small Claims 
1425 Accts Receivable - Planning 
1430 Claims on Cash 
1450 Interest Receivable 
1455 Revenue Recievable 
1460 Grants Receivable 
1530 Prepaid Insurance 
1535 Prepaid Dependent Coverage 
1540 Prepaid COBRA Coverage 
1700 Machinery & Equipment 
1701 Building and Improvements 
1702 Land and Improvements 
1703 Infrastructure 
1705 Vehicles 
1708 Construction in Progress 
1710 Accurn Depr - Mach & Equip 
1740 Accum Depr- Vehicles 
1750 Accurn Depr - Bldg & lmprv 
1760 Accum Depr - Infrastructure 

Total Assets 

Liabilities and Fund Balance 
Liabilities 

2010 Accounts Payable 
2012 Sales Tax Payable 
2050 Accrued Interest 
2070 Accrued Garnishments Payable 
2090 Accrued PD Dues Payable 
2100 Accrued EE Dues Payable 
2120 Accrued Wages 

CITY OF RIO DELL 
Comparative Balance Sheet 

As of June 30, 2013 

This Year Last Year 

1,906,789.37 522,089.53 
150.00 150.00 
250.00 250.00 
250.00 250.00 
250.00 0.00 

250.00 0.00 

1,113.65 651.06 
52,245.17 31,137.34 

153,506.02 153,490.72 

4,762.71 4,751.30 
7,587.24 6,063.80 

1,271,082.67 1,292,925.66 
2,954.68 76,966.81 

135,000.00 160,000.00 
202,443.49 193,542.61 

945.00 0.00 
0.00 433.69 

117.06 (265.25) 
(6.20) 0.00 
2.89 0.00 

254,013.48 66,114.68 
761,001.46 3,111,729.00 

14,959.26 15,135.51 
0.00 (49.62) 

(390.60) 0.00 
934,191.00 927,808.00 
171,836.00 142,830.00 
507,859.00 507,859.00 

12,246,095.87 12,246,095.87 
58,442.00 58,442.00 

10,291,881.00 3,291,938.00 
(919,188.00) (897,700.68) 

(58,442.00) (58,438.00) 
(117,849.00) (107,441.00) 

(1,018,157.00) (731,219.00) 

26,865,946.22 21,015,541.03 

242,500.17 901,855.32 
297.30 802.04 

0.00 33.68 
(102.11) 0.00 
(120.00) 0.00 

0.00 96.00 
45,240.76 48,189.37 

Change 

1,384,699.84 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 

250.00 

250.00 

462.59 
21,107.83 

15.30 

11.41 
1,523.44 

(21,842.99) 
(74,012.13) 
(25,000.00) 

8,900.88 
945.00 

(433.69) 
382.31 

(6.20) 
2.89 

187,898.80 
(2,350,727.54) 

(176.25) 
49.62 

(390.60) 
6,383.00 

29,006.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 

6,999,943.00 
(21,487.32) 

(4.00) 
(10,408.00) 

(286,938.00) 

5,850,405.19 

(659,355.15) 
(504.74) 

(33.68) 
(102.11) 
(120.00) 

(96.00) 
(2,948.61) 

23 



Run: 10/22/2013 at 4:03 PM 

2222 Loan Payable-SWRCB WWTP Project 
2233 Retention 
2234 Lease Payable- John Deere 
2235 Lease Payable- John Deere 
2238 RCAC- Planning & Design Loan Sewer 
Effluent & Facility Project 
2240 RCAC Bridge Loan (Formerly Six rivers 
Ntnl Bnk) 
23 10 Bond - Sewer Assessment 
2410 Deposit - Utility Customers 
2415 Customer Credits- UIB 
2510 Trust - 457 Deferred Comp 
2600 Compensated absenses payable 
2700 Deferred Revenue 

Total Liabilities 

Fund Balance 

3010 Fund Balance 
3020 Investment in Fixed Assets 
3110 Retained Earnings 
3210 Prior Period Adjustment 
3500 Residual Equity Transfer 

Change in Fund Balance 

Total Fund Balance 

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance 

CITY OF RIO DELL 
Comparative Balance Sheet 

As of June 30, 2013 

This Year Last Year 
6,980,859.00 0.00 
2,176,000.00 2,312,000.00 

25,599.32 37,294.30 
0.00 5,898.77 
0.00 157,796.18 

0.00 569,008.43 

135,000.00 160,000.00 
34,347.15 27,494.12 

1,721.65 666.23 
(3,414.73) 0.00 
17,394.71 15,971.61 

1,252,483.64 1,287,912.45 

10,907,806.86 5,525,018.50 

15,384,080.51 11,744,104.06 
0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 

106,442.02 106,442.02 
0.00 0.00 

467,616.83 3,639,976.45 

15,958,139.36 15,490,522.53 

26,865,946.22 21,015,541.03 

Change 
6,980,859.00 
( 136,000.00) 
(11,694.98) 
(5,898.77) 

(157,796.18) 

(569,008.43) 

(25,000.00) 
6,853.03 
1,055.42 

(3,414.73) 
1,423.10 

(35,428.81 ) 

5,382,788.36 

3,639,976.45 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 

(3,172,359.62) 

467,616.83 

5,850,405.19 

24 



675 Wildwood A vellue 

Rio Dell, CA 95562 

(707) 764-3532 

(707) 764-5480 (fax) 

E-Illail: cl1l@riodellcity.com 

November 7,2013 

TO: Honorable Rio Dell City Council 

FROM: Ji~CitYManager 

C ITY o r 

j~ 
DELL 
~ . 

t,"" -.J. IF(>l '" 

SUBJECT: Change Order #2 (Sidewalk replacement) Wildwood Avenue Improvement Project 

IT IS RECOMMENDED rnA T THE RIO DELL CITY COUNCIL: 

Ratify the City Manager's action to approve Change Order #2 in the amount of$3,191.33 for the 

replacement of 21 0 square foot of sidewalk in (2) locations on the west side of Wildwood A venue 
Project area, funded with savings from other project cost centers. 

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 

As the Council may recall, the Wildwood Avenue Improvement Project (for construction) was 

awarded to Cal Electro on July 23,2013 in the base amount of$461,832. At a prior meeting the 
Council prioritized 6 bid alternatives and elected at the time of award to include the first three for a 
welcome sign, (2) art pedestals and a town clock. 

The Federal project grant administered through CalTrans totaled $589,000. Bids came in $49,832 
higher than expected, thus requiring a contribution of City monies from the General Fund. The art 
pedestals and town clock increased that local requirement to $68, 032. 

The lesser priority bid options not funded included sidewalk were tree wells, street furniture and 
sidewalk replacement, all totaling $101,050. The last priority bid alternative was sidewalk 
replacement at $9,450, and it was ranked last only because there was an issue about the 

responsibility of property owners for the replacement of dangerous sidewalks adjacent to their 
property, and the locations of the sidewalk repairs were not available when the bid alternatives were 
prioritized. As it turns out, 2/3 rd ofthe sidewalk repairs identified were a City responsibility, and if 
unrepaired present a liability to the agency. 

28 



Inasmuch as Cal Electro's concrete crew was in town for a short while to finalize some work; the 
City needed to make the sidewalk repairs at the earliest opportunity, the price was right and there 

was savings available, the City Manager authorized the work to be done. 

It is requested that the City Council ratify the City Manager's action approving Change Order #2 in 
the amount of $3, 191.33 . The estimated balance in the project contingency after these repairs is 
$15,808. If that balance remains at the end of the project, the General Fund Contribution for the 
project will in effect be reduced from $68,032 to $52,224. 

As an aside, there are 3 medians in the project, other that the clock median, that do not have trees, 

due in large part to the last minute changes to the length and placement of the medians. Today, 
neighboring businesses and residents along the avenue have let it be known that they would like to 
have "our" tree. Once the project is complete, we plan to purchase (3) Big Leaf Maple trees locally 
to be planted by staff. The medians already have irrigation. 

2 

29 



b d 

PROJECT: CITY OF RIO DELL 
DOVVNTOVVNSTREETSCAP 
IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 

CHANGE ORDER 

CHANGE ORDER No.:2 

DATE: OCTOBER 30, 2013 

CONTRACTOR: Cal Electro Construction, Inc. PAGE: 1 OF 2 

DESCRIPTION of CHANGE: Remove and replace sidewalks at two locations 

No. DESCRIPTlON AMOUNT 
Sidewalk Demolition and Repair: Work to be completed includes the demolition, $3,191.33 
removal, and repair of two sections of sidewalk on the west side of Wildwood Avenue 
between Douglas and Cedar streets. Demolition will include the breaking and removal of 
existing sidewalk sections. The repair will include the placement and surface finishing of 

1 
210 SF of concrete in two separate locations as directed by the engineer. 

Contractor agrees to complete this work for the agreed lump sum of $3, 191.33. This 
work was included as a bid alternate in the original project plans was not awarded due to 
budget limitations. The City is now requesting that this work be added and is eligible for 
federal participation. 

TOTAL $3,191.33 

GHD Inc. 
718 Third Street Eureka CA 95501 USA 
T 1 707 ~3 8326 F 1 707444 8330 E eurcka@ghd.com W 11'11 II .ghd.com 

30 



b 1 

Ad' t t fC t t S IJUS men 0 on rae urn Ad' t t fC t tT JUS men 0 on rae Ime 
Original Contract Time - Calendar 

Original Contract Sum $533,482.00 Day 80 

Prior Adjustments ($2,199.68) Prior Adjustments 4 

Contract Sum Prior to this Change $531 ,282.32 Contract Time Prior to this Change 84 
Adjustment for this Change $3191.33 Adjustment for this Change 1 
Revised Contract Sum $534,473.65 Revised Contract Time 85 

CONTRACTOR WAIVERS ANY CLAIM FOR FURTHER ADJUSTMENTS FOR THE CONTRACT SUM AND THE CONTRACT TIME RELATED TO THE ABOVE - DESCRIBED 

CHANGE IN THE WORK. 

CONSTRUCTION MANAGER 
RECOMMENDED BY: 

CONTRACTOR 
ACCEPTED BY: 

4\ 

--------

DATE: 

10/29113 

CITY MANAGER 
APPROVED BY: 

PUBLIC WORKS 
RECOMMENDED BY: 

DATE: 

DATE: 

31 



CITY Of 

Rio Dell City hall 
675 Wildwood Avellue 
Rio Dell, CA 95562 
(707) 764-3532 
riodellcity. com 

J~ DELL 

November 7,2013 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 

FROM: Jim 9:h, City Manager 

SUBJECT: Modification of employment agreement with City Manager James R Stretch 

IT IS REQUESTED THAT THE CITY COUNCIL 

1. Approve an amendment to the April 17, 2012 Employment Agreement of City Manager 
James R Stretch and the November 20,2012 amendment to that agreement to reflect full time 
employment as follows: 

A. Amend Hours o/Work Section 8 of the agreement to provide that employee shall 
be paid for all hours worked. Employee shall endeavor to keep the hours worked at 40 or 
less/week. 
B. Amend Vacation, Sick Leave, Holiday and Executive Time Section 11 of the 
agreement to provide that the benefits earned are based on a full time position. More 
specifically: 

• Vacation credit to be earned at 120 hours per fiscal year (10 hrs. /month) and shall 
not be earned or accrued in excess of 180 hours. The rules for vacation accrual 
shall be the same as any other management employee of the City. 

• Sick leave credit to be earned at 8 hours/month. 
• Holiday pay shall be observed the same as any other management employee of 

the City. 
• Employee shall receive 80 hours of Executive Leave/year and be paid for the 

benefit the same as any other City employee. 
2. The automobile allowance of $300 (Section 10) to cover the cost of employee using his 

personal vehicle on City business is not changed by this amendment and shall remain at the 
% time calculation. 

3. The hourly rate of compensation at $52.24 (Section 6) is not changed by the amendment and 
shall remain the same for the balance of the contract period. 

4. The effective date of the amendments is November 02,2013. 
5. Direct the City Attorney to prepare these amendments to the agreement and 

authorize the Mayor to sign. 

1 

32 



BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 

Prior to June 1,2012, the City Manager in Rio Dell was considered to be a full time position and 
worked accordingly. After reorganization in 2011-12 the position was reassigned by the City 
Council to Y2 time and James R Stretch was hired on those tenns, effective May 21,2012. After 
two months on the job the Council increased the position to full time for the months of August 
and September 2012 and then back to Y2 time on October 1,2012 with the hope that the services 
of the City Manager would ease-it didn't. 

On November 20, 2012 the City Council approved a contract modification to allow the City 
Manager to work up to 40 hours/week when necessary. However, it was assume by the City 
Manager that the demand would generally settle at % time so the benefit accruals were not asked 
to be adjusted. It is the City Manager's opinion at this time that the demand of the position 
between now and the end ofthe contract period (May 21,2014) will most likely require a full 
time effort, so the benefits are requested to be adjusted accordingly. 

For the good of the Order, the incumbent is agreeable to work full time for the balance of the 
contract period as required. The experience in the last almost 17 months is that the position is 
easily full time. Besides the nonnal press of events over the next 6 months, the City Manager 
will be conducting the recruitment for the new City Manager and perhaps provide an overlap for 
a short period of time if requested by the new City Manager and the City Council. 

Assuming that the City Council is agreeable to this proposal, language to amend the agreement 
has been prepared for the legal review of the City Attorney. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

Assuming the position requires a full time effort, the City Manager's budget would require an 
augmentation of approximately $15,800 from the General Fund Contingency, which has a 
current balance of approximately $1,000,000. 

2 

33 



CITY or 

~-.~--~~~~~~.- lD.:.~E15L~L5 Rio Dell Cit)' hall 
675 'Filliwood Avellue 
Rio Dell, CA 95562 -- I 
(707) 764-3532 LA( IfOtl'.!A 

riollellcity. com 

November 7,2013 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 

FROM: Jim 4CilY Manager 

SUBJECT: Pay Request #1 to Cal Electro for Wildwood Avenue Project 

IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT THE CITY COUNCIL: 

Approve payment #1 in the amount of$439,644.28 to Cal Electro for Wildwood Avenue 
Improvement Project. 

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 

The Wildwood Avenue Improvement Project is almost complete and this is the first request for 
payment from General Contractor Cal Electro. The payment request has been reviewed and 
recommended by the City Engineer and Construction Manager (GHD) and the City Manager. 

The earthwork, concrete, electrical and landscaping works is substantially complete. The balance 
of the work related to installation of drip irrigation, minor work on the Welcome Sign and 
cleanup should be completed by November 8, 2013 . 

Details for the claim are attached. It is recommended that the City Council approve the payment 
request in the amount of $439,644.28. 

1 

34 



Memorandum 

November 1,2013 

Jim Stretch, City Manager 
To: 

Cc: 

From: 
Merrill Perry, Construction Manager 1111 Tel: 707-443-8326 

Subject: Wildwood Avenue Downtown Improvement Project Pay Request No.1 Job no. : 8410114 

Construction of the Wildwood Avenue Downtown Improvement Project is nearly complete. The concretre, 
earthwork, electrical and landscaping is nearly complete. Work remaining includes finish the planting and 
installation of the drip irrigation, minor work on the gateway sign, cleanup and working. All contract item 
work is anticipated to be completed by the end of next week. PG&E has scheduled the power to be 
turned on for November 12'h, after which we can review how the electrical items are functioning and 
complete the final punch list. 

One change order was issued during this period, for the revisions to the median islands, landscaping and 
electrical resulting in a net credit to the City in the amount of $2,798.55. These changes were discussed 
prior to execution of the change order with the city manager at one council meeting. The construction 
contract is anticipated to be completed within the original contract budget. 

We have reviewed the attached Progress Payment Request No.1 from Cal Electro, Inc. It is based on 
the bid schedule unit cost dollar figures in the Contractor's bid and the actual quantities of work 
completed consistent with the bid schedule. We recommend payment to Cal Electro, Inc. for Pay 
Request No. 1 in the amount of $439,644.28 at this time. Payment to the contractors is due within 30 
days of the completed progress pay request. This amount takes into account 5% retention to be withheld 
until the project is complete. The current invoice was first accepted on September 10th. 

Please don't hesitate to contact me if you have any questions regarding the project progress or this pay 
request. 

ATTACHMENTS: Cal Electro, Inc. invoice 

--------------------------------------------------------------
GHD Inc. 
718 Third Street Eureka CA 95501 USA 1 
T 1 707 443 8326 F 1 707 444 8330 E eureka@ghd com W www ghd com 

35 



w 
en 

Wlnzler Kelly 

City of Rio Dell 
Rio Dell Downtown Improvements Project 
Contractor: Cal Electro Inc. 
Progress Pay Request III 

CONTRACT ITEMS 

Item No. Description 
I Mobilization/Demobilization 
~ Construcllon Area Signs 
3 Construcllon Staking 
4 Traffic Control (Throughout 

Construcllon) 
5 Erosion and Sediment Control 
6 Remove Existing Pavement Striping & 

Markings 
7 Cold Plane Asphalt Concrete 6" ma.x 
8 Roadway Excavalion (18",15 trees@ 

24") 
9 Minor Concrete (6" Curb, AI-6) 
10 2" Water Service Connection 
II Landscape and Irrigation 
12 Thermoplastic Pavement Markings 
13 4-lnch TIlermoplastic Traffic Sinpe (22 , 

27B, Loading Zone) 
14 6-lnch Thermoplastic Traffic Stripe (39, 

39A) 
15 8-lnch TIlermoplastic Traffic Stripe (38) 

16 RetroreOective Pavement Marker (Type 
H Detail 26 and Type G Detail 22 and 
Detaal38) 

17 Welcome Sign Installation 
18 Lighting & Electrical 
19 Art Pedestals 
10 Clock 
21 Clock Pedestal 

EXTRA WORK 

Item No. Description 

Change Order Median Island, Landscaping and 
III Electrical Modifications 

Contract 
Quantity Unit Unit Price 

I LS 526,000 00 
15 EA 535000 
I LS S8,OOO,00 

I LS 529,000.00 
I LS 52,50000 

I LS 52,18000 
1372 SY SIS 00 

652 CY 541,00 
1740 LF 533.00 

I LS 51,20000 
I LS S269,OOO.00 

322 SF 510.00 

5380 LF 5100 

3958 LF 51.00 

50 LF 5300 

85 EA 56.00 
I LS 56,000,00 
I LS 538,000,00 
2 EA 5I,ooo,()O 
I LS S15,OOO.00 
I LS 51 ,200,00 

-CONl RACT TOl ALS 

Contract 
Quantity Unit Unit Price 

I LS -52,798,55 
" 

. , 
ExrRA WORKSUB10IAL 

CONTRACT AND EXTRA WORK TOTAL 

Contract 
Amount 

526,000 00 
55,250.00 
S8,OOO 00 

$29,000.00 
51,500.00 

52,28000 
520,58000 

527,384.00 
557,420.00 
SI,200.00 

S169,OOO 00 
S3,220.00 

55,380.00 

53,958.00 

5150,00 

5510.00 
56,000,00 

538,000,00 
52,000.00 

SI5,ooo 00 
51,100.00 

S524,032.00 

Contract 
Amount 

-52,798,55 
-S2,798,55 

S52 I ,233.45 

Quantity 
Complete To Date 

0.75 
000 
100 

0.90 
0.90 

1.00 
1296.00 

652,00 
1656,00 

1.00 
090 

224.00 

5622.00 

4350,00 

000 

128.00 
0.75 
0,75 
2.00 
090 
1.00 

Quantity 
Complete to Date 

1.00 

11/1/1013 

Amount Amount Previously 
Complete To Certified for Amount Currently 

Date Payment J)ue 
SI9,500.00 SO.OO $I'),5I1I1IKI 

5000 SO 00 $IUJU 
58,000 00 SO 00 SII .O(JU 1M) 

526,100.00 50.00 $26, I UU.IKI 
52,150.00 50.00 S2,25U.UO 

52,180.00 50.00 S2,2110 UO 
SI9,440.00 SO.()() · S 1').44tJ.lX) 

527,384.00 50,00 $27,311.1.00 
554,648,00 50.00 S54,tl411.IlU 

51,200,00 50,00 SI ,2uU IX) 
5242,100.00 50.00 S242,IIJO 00 

52,24000 5000 $2,241l UU 

55,622.00 50,00 S5,h22.00 

54,350,00 50.00 $.1,350.00 

SO.OO 50.00 $0 IX) 

5768.00 $0,00 S7611.00 
54,500.00 50.00 $4,5UO.1l1l 

528,500.00 50.00 $2I1,5111l.0U 
S2,OOO.00 50,00 S2,UUO IX) 

513,500,00 50.00 S13,50U.uO 
SI,2oo 00 SO.OO SI,2IXIIlO 

$465,582.00 SO.OO S41,5,582,tH) 

Amount Amount Previously 
Complete to Certified for Amount Currently 

Date 

-52,798.55 
-52,798.55 

S462,783.45 

Payment 

5000 
so. (H) S 
SO.OO S 

Toilil Eorned To Dale S 
Total Retention To Dole S 

Previous Pa ments S 
AMOUNT DUE 

Hue 

-$2,7<)11 55 
(2,7')11.55) 

4(,2,783.45 

462,7113.45 
23,Il·). 17 

S~3l),I.~4.211 



CONTRACTOR'S APPLICATION & CERTIFICATE FOR PAYMENT 

FROM: CAL ELECTRO INC. 
371 0 ELECTRO WAY 
REDO I NG, CA 96002 
(530) 223-5937 Fax (530) 221-7038 

ARCHITECT: 

PROJECT: 01061--12004 

CUSTOMER: RIODL 
INVOICE 0: 1387-01R 

INVOICE DATE: 10/30/13 
PERIOD TO: 10/25/13 

CONTRACT DATE: 07130113 
APPLICATION I: 01 

APPLICATION FOR PAYMENT 

1. ORIGINAL CONTRACT SUM ........................... .. 
2. Net Change by Change Orders ...•.••.•.•...•.•...•.• 
3. CONTRACT SUM TO DATE (Line 1 +1- 2) .•.....•••..••• 
4. TOTAL COMPLETED & STORED TO DATE .•.•.•.•.•.•.••••. 

(Column G on Continuation Sheet) 
5. RETAINAGE: 

a. 5% of Completed Work..... ........ $23,139.17 
(Column O+E on Continuation Sheet) 

b. 0% of Stored Material............ $0.00 
(Column F on Continuation Sheet) 

Total Retainage (line 5a + 5b or 
Total in Column [ on Continuation Sheet) •••..• 

6. TOTAL EARNED LESS RETA[NAGE ..•.....•....•.•.•.•..• 
(line 4 less Line 5 Total) 

7. LESS PREVIOUS CERTIFICATES FOR PAyMENT .•...•.•...• 
(Line 6 from prior Certificate) 

8. SALES TAX (if applicable) ........ ............... .. 
9. CURRENT PAYMENT DUE. ............................ .. 

10. BALANCE TO FINISH, PLUS RETAlNAGE ......•.•......•. 
(Line 3 less line 6) 

TO: CITY OF RIO DELL 
675 WILDWOOD AV( 
RIO DELL, CA 95562 

PROJECT: RIO DELL PED STREET IHPROV 
WI LOI/OOD AVE 

$524.032.00 
$-2.798.55 

$521.233.45 
$462.783.45 

$23.139.17 
$439.644.28 

$0.00 

SO.OO 
$439.644.28 
$81.589.17 

RIO DEll. CA 95562 

Page 1 

lhe undersigned Contractor certifies that to the best of the Contractor's knowledge. information and belief the Work covered by 
this Application for Payment has been completed in accordance with the Contract Documents. that all amounts have been paid by the 
Contractor for Work for which previous Certificates for Payment were issued and payments received from the Owner. and that current 
payment shown herein is now due. 

CONTRACTOR: CAL ELECTRO INC. 

CERTIFICATE FOR PAYMENT 
In accordance with the Contract Documents. based on on-site observations and the data comprising the above application. the 
Architect certifies to the Owner that to the best of the Architect's knowledge. information and belief the Work has progressed as 
indicated. the Quality of the Work is in accordance with the Contract Documents. and the Contractor is entitled to payment of the 
AMOUNT C£RTIFIED. 

AMOUNT CERTI FI EO ••.•..•.•..•..•.•.•......•.•.•.•.•.. $439,644.28 
ARCHITECT: 

By: Date: ___ _ 
This Certificate is not negotiable. The AMOUNT CERTIFIED is payable only to the Contractor named herein. Issuance. payment and 
acceptance of payment are without prejudice to any rights of the Owner or Contractor under this Contract. 

37 



CONTRACTOR'S APPLICATION & CERTIFICATE FOR PAYMENT Page 2 

FROM: CAL ELECTRO INC. TO: CITY Of RIO DELL 
3710 ELECTRO WAY 615 WILDWOOD AVE 
REDDING. CA 96002 RIO DELL. CA 95562 
(530) 223-5937 Fax (530) 221-7038 

CUSTOMER: RIODL 
INVOICE D: 1381-01R PROJECT: RIO DELL PED STREET IHPROV 

ARCHITECT: INVOICE DATE: 10/30/13 Imlll/OOD AYE 
PERIOD TO: 10/25/13 RIO DELL. CA 95562 

PROJECT: 01061-12004 CONTRACT DATE: 07/30/13 
APPLICATION 8: 01 

CONTINUATION SHEET 

A B C D E F G H 

ITEM DESCRIPTION OF WORK SCHEDULED ..... WORK COMPLETED ..... MATERIALS TOTAL I BAtANCE RETAINAGE 
NO. VALUE FROM THIS PRESENTLY COMPLETED (G/C) TO FINISH 

PREVIOUS PERIOD STORED & STOREO (C'G) 
APPLICATION (HOT IN TO DATE 

([}+-E) D OR El (D+E+F) 

ORlGlNAL CONTRACT: 
01110 HOSILIZ/O£HOBILIZ 26.000.00 19.500.00 19.500.00 15 6,500.00 915.00 
01175 CONST AREA SIGNS 5.250.00 0 5.250.00 
01180 CONSTR STAKING 8.000.00 8,000.00 8,000.00 100 0100.00 
01190 TRAfFIC CONTROL(ALL) 29,000.00 26.100.00 26.100.00 90 2.900.00 1.305.00 
01200 EROSION/SEOMNT CHTRL 2.500.00 2.250.00 2.250.00 90 250.00 112.50 
01210 REM PAVHT STRIP&HARK 2.280.00 2.280.00 2.280.00 100 114.00 
01220 COLO PLN ASPH/CON 6" 20.580.00 19.440.00 19.440.00 94 1.140.00 972.00 
01240 ROWY EXCY-18'.15 TR 21.384.00 21.384.00 27.384.00 100 1.369.20 
01250 MINOR CONCR-6" CURS 51.420.00 54.648.00 54.648.00 95 2.112.00 2.132.40 
01300 2" WATER SERV CONN 1.200.00 1.200.00 1.200.00 100 60.00 
01310 LANDSCAPE & IRRIG 269.000.00 242.100 .00 242.100.00 90 26.900.00 12.105.00 
01320 THERMOPL PAYHT MARK 3.220 .00 2.240.00 2.240.00 10 980.00 112.00 
01330 4"THERHOPL TRAF STRI 5.380.00 5.622.00 5.622.00 104 '242.00 281.10 
()1340 6"THERHOPL TRAF STRI 3.958.00 4.350.00 4.350.00 110 '392.00 211.50 
01400 8"THERHOPL TRAF STRI 150.00 0 150.00 
01410 RETROREFL PVHT MARK 510.00 168.00 768.00 151 -258.00 38.40 
01420 ALT I-WELCOME SIGN 6.000.00 4.500.00 4.500.00 75 1.500.00 225.00 
01430 ALl l·lIGHT&ELEC 38.000.00 28.500.00 28.500.00 75 9.500.00 1.425.00 
01480 ALT 2-ART PEDESTALSO 2.000.00 2.000.00 2.000.00 100 100.00 
01500 AU 3'CLOCK 15.000.00 13.500.00 13.500.00 90 1.500.00 675.00 
01510 ALT 3'CLOCK P£DESTL 1.200.00 1.200.00 I.200.00 100 60.00 

TOTALS: 524.032.00 0.00 465.582.00 0.00 465.582.00 89 58.450.00 23.279.10 

CHANGE ORDERS: 
COOl ITEMS 7-18 PER CO '2.798.55 '2.198.55 -2.198.55 100 '139.93 

COOl approved 10/08/13 

TOTALS: 521.233 .45 0.00 462.783.45 0.00 462.783.45 89 58.450.00 23,139.17 

38 



675 Wildwood Avenue 
Rio Dell, CA 95562 

TO: 

FROM: 

THROUGH: 

DATE: 

SUBJECT: 

Rio Dell City Council 

Karen Dunham, City Clerk 

Jim Str~ City Manager 

Nove~ 12, 2013 

Cancellation of November 19,2013 Regular Meeting 

RECOMMENDATION 

Approve cancellation of November 19,2013 regular City Council meeting. 

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 

CITY or 

4ffi D'ELL 
~ . 

CAUF('JIiI '>IIA 

As you are aware the November 9,2013 meeting was cancelled due to the lack of a 
quorum and rescheduled for November 12,2013. Since the next regular meeting falls 
on the following Tuesday (November 19th

), staff is recommending cancellation of that 
meeting. There are no time-sensitive or urgent matters pending before the Council. 

Chapter 2.05.060 of the Rio Dell Municipal Code (RDMC) allows for any meeting of the 
City Council to be cancelled or rescheduled in advance of the meeting by a majority vote 
of the members present. 

39 



675 Wildwood Avenue 
Rio Dell, Ca 95562 
(707) 764-3532 

CITY OF RIO DELL 
STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
NOVEMBER 12, 2013 

TO: Mayor and Members of the City Council 

THROUGH: Jim Stretch, City Manager 

FROM: Stephanie Beauchaine, Finance Director~ ~ 
DATE: November 8, 2013 

SUBJECT: Establishment of Internal Service Fund No. 005 titled Administrative Fleet 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
Authorize the establishment of Internal Service Fund 005 titled Administrative Fleet 

BUDGETARY IMPACT 
None. 

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 
The City recently purchased an administrative vehicle to be used by City Officials for approved 
City Business. Now that we have purchased the vehicle, we would like to establish a process for 
maintaining and replacement of the vehicle at the end of its useful life. 

The recommended way to achieve this is to establish what is called an Internal Service 
Fund. Internal Service Funds are defined as follows: funds established to finance, 
administer, and account for departments or agencies of a government whose exclusive or 
nearly exclusive purpose is to provide goods or services (e.g. printing services) to the 
government's other departments on a cost-reimbursement basis. 

Once established, the asset will be transferred to the new Fund. Each department using the 
vehicle will be charged .54 per mile which will be deposited into the Administrative Fleet 
Fund. Over time, the Fund will accumulate enough equity to pay for all servicing costs, and 
future replacement of the vehicle. 

Attachments: Capitalization and Administrative Costs For Pool Car 

40 



CAPITALIZATION AND ADMINISTRAZTION COST FOR 

POOL CAR BASED ON 100,000 MILES 

October 15, 2013 

COST CENTER 

1. PURCHASE PRICE-TOTAL 

2. Oil service 

3. Tires 

4. Wheel alignment 

5. Tune-up 

6. Wiper blades 

7. Miscellaneous repairs 

8. Auto body repair 

9. Administration 

10. Vehicle cleaning & servicing 

11. Fuel 

12. Vehicle replacement cost 

13. Vehicle salvage value 

Total estimated cost of operation for 

100,000 miles 

NOTES 

$21,202 Includes registration & tax 

1,125 every 4,000 miles @ $45 ea . 

950 replace at 40,000 miles 

750 annual @ $75 ea. 

400 every 100,000 miles 

200 every year @ $20 

250 unforeseen repairs 

2,000 employee damage 

6,000 $50 for monthly accounting 

6,000 $50 monthly PW cleaning 

12,000 based on 35mpg @ $4.25jgal 

4,298 10 year replacement @ $25,500 

(1,000) used car value @ 100,000 miles 

$54,175 

$54,175 @ 100,000 MILES =S $00.54jMILE 

41 



CITY OF 

Rio Dell City hall 
675 Wildwood Avenue 
Rio Dell, CA 95562 
(707) 764-3532 
riodellcity. COlli 

«ffi D'ELL 
---

CAurOB-'IIA 

November 7,2013 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 

FROM: J~etch' City Manager 

SUBJECT: City Position on SB 405, phasing out of single use plastic bags. 

IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT THE CITY COUNCIL: 

1. Detennine whether to take a position on SB 405 (Padilla) and whether to adopt the 
resolution offered for consideration, and 

2. Give direction to staff about communicating that position to the author, the City's 
legislative representatives and the League of California Cities. 

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 

On October 10, 2013 the City received a letter from State Senator Alex Padilla asking for 
support of Senate Bill 405 (SB 405 Padilla) which would phase out the use of single-use plastic 
bags in the state. Senator Padilla serves as the Chair of the Senate Energy, Utilities and 
Communications Committee, the policy committee in the Senate that heard the bill, amended it 
twice and passed it out of committee. 

DIGEST 

This bill would prohibit grocery stores and large retailers from providing single-use bags to 
customers beginning January 1, 2015. The ban expands to convenience stores, foodmarts and 
certain other stores on July 1, 2016. 

EXISTING LAW 

Existing law in-part provides that stores over 10,000 square feet that include a pharmacy, and 
supennarkets, must establish an at-store recycling program. Other major provisions are: 

1. Plastic bag manufacturers must develop educational materials to encourage reducing and 
recycling of plastic bags and distribute that material in stores. 

2. Cities and Counties may adopt local and enforce curbside or drop-off recycling programs. 
3. Cities, Counties and the State are authorized to levy fines for stores in violation of the 

law. 

1 

42 



4. The law defines a reuseable bag as a bag with handles and made of either cloth or durable 
plastic made of at least 2.25 mils thickness and designed for multiple uses. 

5. Current law expires on January 1,2020. 

THIS BILL 

1. Requires that a reuseable grocery bag (plastic, paper or cloth) after July 1, 2016 must be 
able to be used 125 times, be cleanable, have specific information visible on the bag and 
not contain certain materials like lead and heavy metals. The bag must be consistent with 
Federal regulation for recyclable bags. 

2. Provides additional requirements for a reuseable plastic grocery bag, such as the ability to 
carry 22 pounds of contents for 175 feet. 

3. Authorized the Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery (CalRecycle) to 
inspect and test bag producers and assess penalties for violations. 

4. Prohibits a single -use carry-out bag (paper, plastic or other material) from being 
available at the point of sale. 

5. Requires a store, after July 1,2016, to make available reuseable grocery bags at point of 
sale. 

6. Authorizes a store to make available a recycled paper bag for purchase at point of sale. 
7. Requires a store to provide a customer participating in the California Supplemental Food 

Program for Women, Infants and Children to be provided with a reuseable grocery bag at 
no cost. 

8., Authorizes a store to make a compostable grocery bag available for purchase. 
9. Authorizes a City, County or State to impose and collect penalties for violations. 
10. Preempts local agencies from adopting new ordinances related to reuseable or single-use 

or recycled bags after January 1, 2014. 

CURRENT BILL STATUS 

The bill passed out of the Senate policy committee and currently resides in the Senate 
Appropriations Committee. The bill did not pass the third reading on the Senate Floor and was 
referred back to committee, thus make it a 2 year bill. The estimated first year cost of the bill to 
the State is $150,000. 

SENATE STAFF ANALYSIS OF THE BILL 

According to Senate Floor Analysis ofthe Bill as amended, plastic bags represent 2.2% ofthe 
waste stream, yet cost Californians $25 million to dispose of 19 billion plastic bags annually. 
Although plastic represents a relatively small fraction of the overall waste stream, plastic waste 
is the predominate form of marine waste. Plastic are estimated to compose 60%-80% of all 
marine waste and 90% of all floating debris. According to the State Coastal Commission, the 
primary source of marine debris is urban runoff, of which lightweight plastics bags and plastic 
film are particularly susceptible. 

Furthermore, CalRecycle reports that only 3% of single-use plastic bags in the State are actually 
recycled and the US-EPA reports that 88% of plastic bags and sacks nationwide are not recycled. 
It is stated that plastic bags take 1,000 years to degrade. 

REUSEABLE BAGS CLAIMED NOT TO BE PERFECT 

2 

43 



Opponents of the bill claim that reuseable grocery bags may have public health implications. For 
example, reuseable bags may harbor bacteria such as coliform bacteria, but washing the bags can 
eliminate 99.9% of the bacteria. However, a 2011 study (not cited) in California and Arizona 
showed that 97% of people did not wash their bags. In addition, a 2012 study by the University 
of Pennsylvania and George Mason University showed that emergency-room admissions related 
to E-coli infections increased in San Francisco after their single-bag use ban went in to effect. 
Similar effects have been reported in other local California jurisdictions that adopted similar 
ordinances. 

AGENCIES THAT SUPPORT SB 405 

Many agencies and organization have reported their support for SB 405, including California 
Coastal Coalition, California State Association of Counties, Humboldt County Board of 
Supervisors and the Humboldt Waste Management Authority. 

AGENCIES IN OPPOSITION TO SB 405 

Most of the opposition to SB 405 can be characterized as plastic bag producers, small grocery 
markets, bakeries and restaurants and the Mendocino Solid Waste Management Authority. 

Included in the agenda packet is all of the materials sent to the City by the author, including his 
cover letter dated October 1,2013, sample resolution for support ofSB 405, list of supporters of 
the bill, Fact Sheet, and a copy of Senate Bill 405 as amended. 

Senator Padilla has requested the support of the City of Rio Dell for the bill. The Council may 
direct staff to prepare a letter of support to be signed by the Chair or Vice Chair, a letter of 
opposition signed by the Chair or Vice Chair, decide to take no position or request the author to 
amend the bill as you see fit. 

3 

44 



October 1, 2013 

City of Rio Dell 
Attn: City Council 
675 Wildwood Ave 
Rio Dell, CA 95562-1544 

Dear Colleague, 

ALEX PADILLA 
SENATOR , 20TH DISTRICT 

•
~ 

. ."Iit ; 

I respectfully ask for your support of Senate Bill 405 which would phase out single-use plastic bags in California. 

Each year in California, more than 13 billion single-use plastic bags are handed out by retailers. CalRecycle reports that 
only 3% of single-use plastic bags are actually recycled. The other 97% litter our streams, rivers and coastline, and 
endanger birds, marine life and wildlife. Plastic bags remain one of the top items found during annual beach cleanups. 

Plastic bags also contribute to blight in our communities and clog local storm water systems. Because plastic bags take 
1,000 years to degrade, their impacts are compounded every year. California local governments spend more than 
$25 rnillion each year to collect and bury plastic bag waste. And the plastic bags that do enter our recycling centers slow 
the sorting process and jam machinery. 

Earlier this year, I introduced SB 405. This bill would enact a statewide phase out of single-use plastic bags in 
California. This legislation is supported by a broad coalition that includes grocers, environmentalists and many local 
governments. 

Despite strong support, SB 405 fell 3 votes short of passage this year. I remain committed to this effort, but I need your 
help. SB 405 will face another vote early next year. Between now and then, I am respectfully asking you to put your 
city on record in support ofSB 405. The City of Los Angeles took this step in June of this year and joined 80 other 
California cities and counties who support the phase out of single-use plastic bags in their communities. 

Please join me in this effort. Attached, please find a sample resolution in support of SB 405, a copy of the bill, and a 
fact sheet with additional information. I look forward to working with you so that single-use plastic bags are soon 
phased out in our state. 

Thank you for your time and consideration. Please feel free to contact me at (916) 651-4020 if you have any questions 
or need additional information. 

Sincerely, 

~?~ 
ALEX PADILLA 
State Senator, 20th District 

CAPITOL OFFICE STATE CAPITOL. ROOM 4038' SACRAMENTO. CA 95814. TEL (916 ) 651 4020' FAX (916 ) 324-6645 

DISTRICT OFFICE 6150 VAN NUYS 8LVD . SUITE 400 ' VAN NUYS. CA 91401 • TEL (818 ) 901 -5588' FAX (818 ) 901 -5562 

45 



RESOLUTION 

WHEREAS, each year in California more than 13 billion single-use plastic bags are handed out 
by retailers and only 3% of these bags are recycled; and 

WHEREAS, plastic bags cause slow sorting and jam machinery at recycling centers costing 
California more than $25 million dollars each year to collect and bury the plastic bag waste; and 

WHEREAS, according to a study commissioned by the US Marine Debris Monitoring Program, 
plastic bags remain one of the top items found consistently during annual beach cleanups; and 

WHEREAS, The Convention on Biological Diversity reports a total of 663 species have been 
affected by plastic marine pollution through entanglement or ingestion; and 

WHEREAS, the United States Environmental Protection Agency finds that reducing the use of 
an item is one of the most effective ways to save our natural resources and protect the 
environment; and 

WHEREAS, a third of Californians are subject to laws phasing out the use of single-use plastic 
bags; and 

WHEREAS, State Senator Padilla has authored SB 405, which would prohibit grocery stores and 
large retailers from providing single-use bags to customers in 2015, and would expand that 
prohibition to convenience stores and food marts in 2016; and 

WHEREAS, by prohibiting the free distribution of plastic bags, SB 405 would help eliminate a 
major source of pollution in California; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, with the concurrence of the Mayor, that by the 
adoption ofthis Resolution, the hereby SUPPORTS Senate Bill 405 (Padilla) that 
would prohibit grocery stores, large retailers, convenience stores, and food marts from providing 
free single-use plastic bags to consumers, and require those stores to have reusable bags 
available for purchase. 

PRESENTED BY ___________ _ 

SECONDED BY ________________ __ 

46 



Green Vets Los Angeles 
Green Waste Recovery 
Heal the Bay 
Humboldt County Board of Supervisors 
Humboldt Waste Management Authority 
LMV Productions 
Los Angeles County Board of Supervisors 
Los Angeles County Integrated Waste 
Management Task Force 
Napa Valley CanDo Environment Group 
National Hispanic Environmental Council 
Natural Resources Defense Council 
Pacifica's Environmental Family 
Planning and Conservation League 
Plasticbaglaws.org 
Republic Services 
Santa Clara County Board of Supervisors 
Save Our Shores 
Seventh Generation Advisors 
Sierra Club California 
Surfrider Foundation 
Team Marine - Santa Monica High School 
The Northern California Recycling Association 
Turtle Island Restoration Network 
United Food & Commercial Workers Western 
States Council 
William C. Velazquez Institute 
Zanker Road Resource Management 

FOR MORE INFORMATION - Contact Angela Manetti, Office of Senator Alex Padilla (916) 651-4020 
47 



SB 405 - PADILLA 
Single-Use Bag Phase Out 

(as amended OS/24/1 3) 

Summary 

SB 405 would phase out single-use plastic bags in 
California grocery stores, convenience stores, 
liquor stores, and pharmacies. 

Background 

Each year in California. more than 13 billion 
single-lise plastic bags are handed alit by retailers. 
According to the United States Environmental 
Protection Agency, 88% of plastic bags and sacks 
are not recycled. In California. ani v 3% are 
recycled, according to CalRecycle. piastic ba!.!s 
cause I ittrr. slow sorting and jam machinery ;t 
recycling centers costing California more than $25 
million dollars each year to collect and bury the 
plastic bag vvaste. According to a study 
commissioned by the US Marine Debris 
Monitoring Program, plastic bag~ remain one of 
the top items found consistently during annual 
beach cleanups. 

Plastic bags are also harmful to the environment 
killing thousands of birds. tUliles and other 
species. Most plastics do not degrade. Although 
they represent ani) 2.2% of waste stream in 
Califoll1ia. plastic waste is the predominate form 
of marine debris. Plastics are estimated to 
compose 60-80% of all marine debris and 90% of 
all tloatin!! debris vvorldwide - . 

Plastics not only entangle marine life. the) are also 
ingested by marine life ancl birds. Most plastic 
marine debris exists as small plastic particles due 
to excessive UV radiation exposure and 
subsequent photo-degradation. The Convention 
on Biological Diversity repOlis a total of 663 
species have been affected by plastic marine 
pollution through entanglement or ingestion. 

The Califomia Coastal Commission reports that 
""birds, tish and mammals often mistake plastic for 
food. Some birds even feed it to their young. With 
plastic filling their stomachs, animals have a false 
feeling of being full. and ma\' die of starvation. 
Sea turtles mistake plastic bag; for jellyfish. one of 
their favorite foods. Even grey whales have been 
found dead vvith plastic bags and sheeting in their 
stomachs:' 

The Scripps Institution of Oceanography at UC 
San Diego found evidence of plastic waste in more 
than 9% of the stomachs of fish collected in the 
North Pacific Subtropical Gyre and estimate that 
fish who reside in the intermediate ocean depths 
ingest 12,000- to 24,000 tons of plastic per year. 

According to the United States Environmental 
Protection Agency. reducing the use of an item is 
one of the most effective wavs to save our natural 
resources and protect the environment. To date. 
many local jurisdictions in California have enacted 
ordinances. The ordinances vary vvith some 
requiring a charge for paper cany-ollt bags and 
others banning both single-use plastic and paper 

FOR MORE INFORMATION - Contact Angela Manetti, Office of Senator Alex Padilla (916) 651-4020 

48 



carr~ out bag::.. These ordinances haw both 
c:liminated th~ costs associated with plastic bags <1::, 

\\ell a~ substantially reduced the volume and costs 
associated \\ ith paper bags in communities. 

For example. San Francisco, Los Angeles County, 
San Jose, and San Luis Obispo County are already 
experiencing the benefits of reducing the use of 
plastic bags. After just one year of 
implementation of its bag ordinance, the City of 
San Jose is reporting 50% cleaner creeks. Los 
Angeles County is reporting a 95% reduction of all 
single-use bags distributed, including a 30% 
reduction of paper bags. 

Existing Law 

Section 42254 and 42257 of the Public Resources 
Code requires large grocery stores to establish a 
plastic bag recycling program and sunsets on 
January 1, 2020. 

Current California law is silent on the reduction of 
single-usc plastic bags. 

This Bill 

This bill would: 

• prohibit a store, on and after January 1, 2015, 
from providing a single-use carryout bag (i.e., 
paper, plastic, or other material) to a customer 
at the point-of-sale. (§42283(a)) 

• authorize a store, on and after July 1, 2016, to 
provide a reusable grocery bag (i.e., cloth or 
durable plastic) to a customer, which may be 
made available for purchase. (§42283(c)(I)). 

• authorize a store to make a recyclable paper 
bag available for purchase at the point of sale. 
(§42283(d)). 

• specifies standards for reusable grocery bags. 
(§4228I) 

• allo'ws ordinances adopted prior to September 
1, 2013 to continue to be enforced. (§..J.2287 
(b»). 

• prohibits any local agency from enforcing an 
ordinance related to single-use carryout bags 
after January 1,2014. (§42287 (b)) 

• allows local agencies to only amend the cost 
associated with the recyclable paper bag for 
existing ordinances (§42287 (c)) 

• authorizes the California Department of 
Resources, Recycling, and Recovery to inspect 
and audit a reusable bag producer. (§42282 
(a)). 

5 Gyres Institute 
Azul 
BagIt 

Support 

Board of Supervisers 
California Coastkeeper AJliance 
California Coastal Coalition 
California Resource Recovery Association 
California State Lands Commission 
Californians Against Waste 
Central Contra Costa County Solid Waste 
Authority 
City of El Cerrito 
City of Long Beach 
City of Palo Alto 
City of Sacramento 
City and County of San Francisco 
City of Sunnyvale 
City of San Francisco 
Clean Water Action 
Clean Water California 
Contra Costa Clean Water Program 
County of Los Angeles 
County of San Mateo 
Environment California 
Greater San Fernando Valley Chamber of 
Commerce 
Green Sangha 

FOR MORE INFORMATION - Contact Angela Manetti, Office of Senator Alex Padilla (9\6) 651-4020 

49 



carryulit bag:; . TIl;?:;l' urd i Innel':'; Ila\(' h .. lti1 
ciilllinut-:d th..: cO:,l:i <b3t.h:i,\t-:d "ith ~~I ,btic b ~l:; '; ~\5 

\\'c?1I as substantially r..:duced the \·olutll..: and cost5 
ass0ciatt:d with paper bags in communities. 

For example. San Francisco, Los Angeles County, 
San Jose, and San Luis Obispo County are already 
experiencing the benefits of reducing the use of 
plastic bags. After just one year of 
implementation of its bag ordinance, the City of 
San Jose is reporting 50% cleaner creeks. Los 
Angeles COllnty is reporting a 95% reduction of all 
single-lise bags distributed, including a 30% 
reduction of paper bags. 

Existing Law 

Section 42254 and 42257 of the Public Resources 
Code requires large grocery stores to establish a 
plastic bag recycling program and sunsets on 
January 1, 2020. 

Current California lav,,' is silent on the reduction of 
single-use plastic bags. 

This Bill 

This bill would: 

• prohibit a store, on and after January 1, 2015, 
from providing a single-llse carryolll bag (i.e .. 
paper. plastic, or other material) to a customer 
at the point-of-sale. (§42283(a)) 

• authorize a store, on and after July 1, 2016, to 
provide a reusable grocery bag (i.e., cloth or 
durable plastic) to a customer, which may be 
made available for purchase. (§42283(c)(1)). 

• authorize a store to make a recyclable paper 
bag available for purchase at the point of sale. 
(§42283(d)). 

• specifies standards for reusable grocery bags. 
(§42281) 

• allo\\'s I1rciinanc..: s udortcc.\ prior t() Scpkmber 
L 2013 tl) continue to be enforced. (~.f2287 

(b» . 

• prohibits any local agency from enforcing an 
ordinance related to single-use carryout bags 
after January 1,2014. (§42287 (b)) 

• allows local agencies to only amend the cost 
associated with the recyclable paper bag for 
existing ordinances (§42287 (c)) 

• authorizes the California Department of 
Resources, Recycling, and Recovery to inspect 
and audit a reusable bag producer. (§42282 
(a)) . 

5 Gyres Insti tute 
Azul 
BagIt 

Support 

Board of Supervisers 
California Coastkecper Alliance 
California Coastal Coalition 
California Resource Recovery Association 
California State Lands Commission 
Californians Against Waste 
Central Contra Costa County Solid Waste 
Authority 
City ofEI Cerrito 
City of Long Beach 
City of Palo Alto 
City of Sacramento 
City and County of San Francisco 
City of Sunnyvale 
City of San Francisco 
Clean Water Action 
Clean Water California 
Contra Costa Clean Water Program 
County of Los Angeles 
County of San Mateo 
Envirorunent California 
Greater San Fernando Valley Chamber of 
Commerce 
Green Sangha 

FOR MORE INFORl"IA TION - Contact Angela Manetti, Office of Senator Alex Padilla (916) 651-4020 

50 



AMENDED IN SEI'<ATE MAY 24. ~()13 

AMENDED IN SENATE APRIL 2, 2013 

SENATE BILL 

Introduced by Senator Padilla 
(Coauthor: Senator Leno) 

February 201 2013 

No.405 ' 

An act to add Chapter 5.3 (commencing with Section 42280) to Part 
3 of Division 30 of, find to repeal Seetion 42285 of, the Public Resources 
Code, relating to solid waste. 

LEGISLATIVE COUNSEL'S DIGEST 

SB 405, as amended, Padilla. So1id waste: single-use can)'out bags. 
Existing law, until Janum)' I, 2020, requires an operator of a store." 

as defined, to establish an at-store recycling program that provides to 
customers the opportunity to return clean plastic carryout bags to that 
store. 

With specified exceptions, this bill, as of January 1, 2015, would 
prohibit stores that have a specified amount of dollar sales or retail floor 
space from providing a single-use carryout bag to a customer. The bill, 
all alld after July 1, 2016, 'tllOuld additiollillly impose this plvhibitio1Z 
on convenience food stores, foodmarts, and certain other specified 
stores. The bill would require all of these stores to meet other specified 
requirements regarding providing recYGled paper bags, compostable 
bags, or reusable grocery bags to customers. 

The bill, on llHd afte~ Jtlly 1, :2:0 16, wotJld additiQft,ttHy irnpose these 
prohibitions and requirelncftts on eOJtvenicrlce fOod stores, foodmarts, 
and certain other speeified stores. 

The bill would require a reusable grocery bag that a store is required 
to sell on and after July 1, 2016J to meet specified requirements. A 

97 

51 



SB405 -2-

violation ot: ~hat reqpirement and the requirements that would be 
imposed upon groGery bag producers to submit certain laboratory test 
results would be subject to an administrative civil penalty assessed by 
the Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery. The department 
would be J'eqtlired to deposit these penalties into the Reusable Bag 
Account, which would be created in the Integrated Waste M'anagement 
Fund, 'for expenditure by the Ciepartment, upon appropriation by the 
Legislature, to implement those requirements. 

Hie biB would req!:lire the eiepartl'nent, by Jftflt18fY I, 2017, to stibmit 
a report to tfle I1eglslatt1re l'Cgftreiing 'the implementation of the bill's 
previ:iions/The:bill w(}~116 repeal [hi:; repert requirement-on ~an.uftry 1, 
w-J%. 

The bill would allow a city, county, or city and county, or the state 
to impose civil penalties for: a violation of the bill's requirements. The 
bill would require these civil penalties to be paid to the office of the 
city attomey, city prosecITtor., district attorney, or Attorney General, 
whichever office brought the action, and would all'ow the penalties 
collected by the Attom~ General to be expended by the Attorney 
General, upon appropriation by the Legislature, to enforce the bill's 
provisions. The bill would provide that these remedies are not exclusive, 
as spedfied. 

The 17m wOlll'd dec/are that it occllPies the whole field of the regulation 
of reusable groc~ry bags, single-use carryollt bags, and recycled paper 
bags and would prohibit a local public agenc}~ 011 and lifter January 
I. 2014, firm.,. e/~forcing or implementing an ordinance, resolution, 
regulation, or rule adopted 011 or after September 1', 2013, relating to 
those bags, unless expressly authorized. The bi! would allow a local 
public agency t1wl has adopted lfillch an ordinanGe, resolution, 
regulation, or rule prior to september 1, 2013, to continue to enforce 
and implement that ordinance, resolution, regulation, or rule, but would 
require any ameniim'ents to tlzat ordillance, resolution, rtgillation, or 
rule to be subje'ct to state preemption. 

Vote: majority. Appropriation: no. Fiscal committee: yes. 
State-'ifiandatelilocal program: no. 

,The people afthe 'State af California do enact asfollows~· 

SEClIION 1.. Chapter 5.3 (commencing with Sedion 42280) 
2 is addelMo Par.n 3 d(Divisibn 30 of the Public Resources Code, to 
3 ream: 

V1 
N 97 

-3- SH405 

1 CHJ\PTER 5.3. SINGLE-USE CARRYOUT BA(-;S 

2 
3 Article 1. Definitions 
4 
5 42280. For purposes of this chapter, the following dellnitions 
6 shall apply: 
7 (a) "Department" means the Department of Resources Recycling 
8 and Recovery. , 
9 (b) "Postconsumer recycled material" means a material that 

I 0 would otherwise be destined for solid waste di sposal, having 
II completed its intended end use and prodllct life cycle, 
12 Postconsumer recycled material does not include materials and 
13 byproducts generated from. and commonly rell<;cd within .. an 
14 original manufacturing and fabrication process. 
15 (c) "Recycled paper bag'" means a paper carryout hag provided 
16 by a store to a customer at the point of sale that meets all of the 
17 following requirements: 
I g (1) (1\.) Except as provided in subparagraph (J3). contai ns ,\ 
19 minimum of 40 percent postconsumer recycled materials. 
20 (B) An eight pound or smaller recycled paper hag <;hall contain 
2l a minimum of 20 percent postconsumer recycled material. 
22 (2) ls accepted for recycling in curbside programs in a majority 
2.g of householCls that have access to curbside recycling programs ill 
24 the state. 
25 (3) Has printed on the bag the name or the manufacturer, the 
26 country where the bag was manufactured. and the minimulll 
27 percentage of I?ostconsumer content. 
28 (d) "Reusable grocery bag" on and after July I. 2016. means a 
29 bag that meets the requirements of Section 422X 1 • 

30 (e} "Reusable grocery bag producer" means a person or entity 
31 that Cloes any of the following: 
32 (1) Manufactures reusable grocery bags for sale or distTihution 
33 to a store. 
34 (2) fmports reusable grocery bags into this steill" ror sale or 
35 distribution to a store. 
36 (3) Sells or distributes reusable bags to a store. 
37 (f) (1) "Single-use carryout bag" means a hag made or plastic. 
38 paper, or other. matedal that is provided by a store tn it custHmer 
39 at the point of sale and that is not a recycled papej· hag or a reusahle 
40 grocery bag that meets the requirements of Section ...J.22X I. 



SB405 -4-

:2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
II 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
W 
~ I 
!2 
!3 
~4 

!5 
!6 
n 
!8 
!9 
10 
II 
12 
13 
\4 
\5 
,6 
,7 
;x 
,9 

V1 
w 

(2) A single-use Garryout bag does not include either of. the 
following: 

(A) A bag provided by a pharmacy pursuant to Chapter 9 
(commencing with Section 4000) of Division 2 of the Business 
and Professions Code to a customer purchasing·a prescription 
medication. 

(B) A nonhandled bag used to protect a purchased item from 
damaging or contaminating other purchased items when p)aced in 
a recycled paper bag or reusable grocery, bag. 

(g) "Store" means a retail establishment that meets any of the 
following requirements: 

( I ) A full-line. self-service retail store with gross annual sales 
of two million dollars ($2,000.000) OF more, and that sells a line 
of dry groceries. canned goods, or nonfood items, and some 
perishable items. 

(2) Ha~ at least I o,noo square feet of retail space that generates 
sales or use tax pursuant to the Bradley-B':lrns Uniform Local Sales 
and Use Tax Law (,Part 1.5 (commencing with Section 7200) of 
Division 2 of the Revenue and Taxation Code) and has a pharmacy 
licensed pursuant to Chapter 9 (commencing with Section 4000) 
of Division 2 of the Business and Professions Code. . 

(3) Is a convenience food store, foodmart, or other entity that 
is engaged in the retail sale of'a limited line of goods, generally 
including milk, bread, soda, and snack foods, and that holds a Type 
20 or Type 21 license issued by the Department of Alcoholic 
Beverage Control. 

Article 2. Reusable Grocery Bags 

4228]. (a) On and afterJuly ;1., 201 6 .• a reusable grocery, bag 
that is sold pursuant to subdivision (c) of Section 42282 42283 
shall meet all of the following requirements: 

(I) (A) Be designed and manufactured to ~ithstand, at a 
minimum, 125 uses. 

(B) For purposes of this panigraph, "J 25 uses" means the 
capability of carrying a minimum of 22 pounds J25 times over a 
distance of at least 175 feet. 

(2) Is nJachine washable or made from a material that can be 
cleaned lind disinfected. 

I 
'J ) .~ 

-5- SB405 

1 (3) Have printed on the bag, or on a tag attached to the bag that 
2 is not intended to be removed. and in a manner visible to the 
3 consumer the following information: 
4 (A) The name of the manufacturer. 
5 (B) The country where the bag was manufactured. 
6 (C) A recycling symbol or end-of-life management instructions. 
7 (D) The percentage of postconsumer recycled mateIial, if any. 
8 (4) Does not contain lead, cadmium, or any other heavy metal 
9 in toxic amounts. This requirement shall not affect any authority 

10 of the Department of Toxic Substances Control pursuant to Article 
11 14 (commencing with Section 25251) of ~hapter 6.5 of Division 
12 20 of the Health and Safety Code and. notwithstanding subdivision 
13 (c ) ~of Section 25257.1 of the Health and Safety Code. the reusable 
14 grocery bag shall not be considered as a product category already 
15 regulated or subject to r:egulation. 
16 ~5) Complies with Section 260.12 of Part 260 of Title 16 of the 
17 Code of FI~deral Regulations related to recyclable claims if the 
18 reusable grocery bag producer makes a claim that the reusable 
19 grocery bag is reeyelttble . recyclable.' 
20 (b) In addition to the requirements in subdivision (a), a reusable 
21 grocery bag made from plastic shall meet all of the following 
22 requirements: 
23 (1) On and after July 1, 2017, be made from a minimum of 20 
24 percent postconsumer recycled material, except as provided in 
25 subdivision (d). 
26 (2) In addition to the information required to be printed on the 
27 bag Of on a tag, pursuant to paragraph (3) of subdivision (a), all 
28 of the fpllowing information shall be printed on the bag, or on a 
29 tag that complies with that paragraph: 
30 (A) A statement that the bag is a reusable bag and designed for 
31 at least 125 uses. 
32 (B) Instructions to return the bag to the store for recycling or 
33 to another appropriate recycling location. 
34 (c) A plastic reusable grocery bag that also meets the 
35 specifications of the American Society of Testing and Materials 
36 (ASTM) Standard Specification for Compostable Plastics D6400, 
37 as published in September 2004, is not required to meet the 
38 requirements of paragraph (1) of subdivision (b), but shall be 
39 labeled in accordance with the applicable state law regarding 
40 compostable plastics. 



sn405 -6-

3 
4 

(d) I r a plastic reusable grocery bag producer is unable to obtain 
surticicnt amounts of postconsumer recycled material to comply 
with this article because of unavailability, the producer shall 
includc the greatest amount of PQstconsumer recycled material 
po~siblc in the reusable grocery bag even if this amount is less . 
than required by paragraph (1 of subdivision (b) and shall indicate 
the percentage that is postconsumer recycled material. 

6 
7 
X -l-22X2. ta) The department may inspect and audit a reusable 
9 grocery bag producer subject to this article with all costs associated 

10 with the audit being paid for by the reusable grocery bag producer. 
I J (h) U pan request by the department, a reusable grocery bag 

producer shall submit labo(atory test results from dndependent, 
accredited OSO/IEC 17025) laboratonies to the department 
validating the reusable grocery bag meets the requirements of 
Sectioll -l--l-2X I for each type of reusable grocery bag that is 
manufactured, impotted, sold, or distnibuted in the state and 
provided to a store for sale or distribution. 

12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
IX (c) The department may test any reusable grocery bag 
)9 manufactured by a reusable grocery bag producer and provided to 
20 a store lor sale or distribution for compliance with this article and 
21 the regula.tions adopted pursuant to this aliticle. 
22 (t1) The dcpm1ment may enter into an agreement with other state 
23 cntities that conduct inspections to provide necessary enforcement 
24 ('If this article. 
25 
26 
27 
28 

(e) Notwithstanding Section 42285, a violation of this article 
shall be subject to an administrative civil penalty assessed by the 
department ill an amount not to exceed five hundred dollars ($500) 
for the lirst viQlation. A subsequent violation may be subject to 
an incrcased penalty of up to five hundred dollars ($500) per 
violation, not to exceed five thousand dollars ($5,000) per violation. 

2lJ 
30 
31 (0 The department shall deposit all penalties collected pursuant 
12 to subdivisionid7 ( e) for a violation of this article into the Reusable 
33 Bag Account, which is hereby created jn the Integrated Waste 
34 Management Fund. The moneys in the Reusable Bag Account 
35 shall be expended by the department, upon appropriation by the 
36 Legislature, to assist the depmtmentfwith its costs ofnmplementing 
37 this article. 

) , 
'- ,...; 

I 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

JO 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 
25 
26 
27 
28 
29 
30 
31 
32 
33 
34 
35 
36 
37 
38 
39 

-7- S8405 

Article 3. Single-Use Can·yout Bags 

42283. (a) On and after January 1, 2015, a store, as dcl"ined 
in paragraph (1) or (2).of subdivision (g) of Section 42280, shall 
not provide a single-use carry out bag to a customer at the point of 
sale. 

(b) On and after July ,2016, a store, as defined in paragraph 
(3) of subdivision (g) of Section 42280, shall not provide a 
single-m~e carryout bag to a customer at the point of sale. 

(c) (J) On and after July J , 2016, a store shall make available 
for purchase b~ a customer reusable grocery bags that meet the 
requirements of Section 4228l. 

(2) On and after July 1,2016, a store shall not sell or distribute 
a reusable bag at the point of sale that docs not meet the 
requirements of Section 42281. 

(d) A store may make available for purchase at the point of sale 
a recycled paper bag. 

(e) Notwithstanding any other law, on and after January 1,2015, 
a store shall provide a customer participating in thc California 
Special Supplemental Food Program for Women, Infants, and' 
Children pursuant to Article 2 (commencing with Section 123275) 
of Chapter I ot: Pprt 2 of Division 106 of the Health and Safety 
Code and a customer participating in the Supplemental Food 
Program pursuant to Chapter 10 (commencing with Section 155(0) 
of Part 3 of Division 9 of the Welfare and Institutions Code with 
a reusable grocery bag or a recycled paper bag at no cost at the 
point of sale. 

(f) Notwithstanding subdivisions (a) and (b), a store may make 
avail,,!-ble for purchase at the point of sale a compostable bag that, 
at a minimum, meets the American Society for Testing and 
Materials (ASTM) Standard Specification for Compostable Plastics 
D64oo, if, in the jurisdiction where the comj)ostable bag is sold, 
both of the following requirements are met: 

(J) A majority of the residential households in the jurisdiction 
have access to curbside collection of foodwaste for composting. 

(2) The governing authority for the jurisdiotion has voted to 
allow stores in the jurisdiction to sell to a consumer at the point 
of sale a compostable bag at a cost not less than the actual cost of 
the bags. 



SB405 -8-

I Article 4. Re~6fting Requirements 
2 
3 42') ~4 . (3:) On er bef6fe Jttfltl8:ry 1. 20 p. the dcplutment shttll 
4 suhmi l a rCfX>rt ttl the Legislliture in f1:ccerottflcewith·Scetieft 9795 
.5 or the Government Code regarding the effeetiT¢enegs of this ehapter 
6 tttld recommefldations for statutory ehttflge,~ te ·increttse 
7 effet'li \'c lle:'l,~, whieh shtlll incltlde !in ef the fOHowiflg: 
8 (I) A conlpilatien ef state e1eftnup dttttt te evaluttte pollution 
9 reduction. 

, 10 (2) Rceommendfltien!5 ttl further encetlrage the lise of fCtlsttble 
I I ,grocery hags by euglomers ttna stefes. 
12 H ) An evaluation 6fthe requirements f6f'fetlsttble gr6CCl'Y bags 
13 !<pccilietl ifl Sectiefl 42281. 
14 (4) Di ,~tl'ibtltien of rccyeled p:if'~r bags. 
J 5 (5) Number flna type ef yi61tttiong. 
16 (6) The depttrtment Shflll e06rdinate with other stttte find local 
17 ttgcncic:'l in compiling thi1'l fep6rt to mttxil'ni:z:e existing effurts ttnd 
18 rCSOtlrcc~ in the M'Ctt,~ ef Jitter reclliction, watcr quttlity, 8fld 
19 etWtt'6ftfncntttl protection. 
20 (c) Pursuant to SeetiOl'l 110231.5 ef the G6Tvernfflcnt Code, this 
21 .xection is rereaka on Jantlary 1, '2018. 
22 
23 Article 5. Enfereement 
24 

.25 
26 

Article 4. Ellforcement 

'27 42285. (a) A city. a county, a city and county. or the state may 
28 impose civil liability in the amoum of five hundred dollars ($500) 
29 for thc lirst violation of this chapter, one thousand dollats ($1,000) I 
30 for the second violation, and two thousand dol lars ($2,000) ifor the 
31 third and subsequent violations. 
32 (b) Any civil penalties collected pursuant to subdivision (a) 
33 shall he paid to the ofifice of the city attomey, city prosecutor, 
34 district attorney. or Attorney General, whichever office brought 
35 the aclion. The penalties collected pursuant to this section by the 
36 Attorney General may be expended by the Attorney General, upon 
37 appropriation by the Legislature, to enforce this chapter. 
38 (c) The remedies provided by this section shall not be exclusive 
1q and shall be in addition to the remedies that may be available 

V1 
V1 

f 

I 

I 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
9 

10 
11 
12 
13 
14 
15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 
21 
22 
23 
24 

J 25 
26 
27 
28 

-9- SB405 

pursuant 'to Chapter 5 (commencing with Section 17200) of Part 
2 of Division 7 of the 'Business and Professions Code. 

Article 5. Preemption 

42287. (a) Except as provided in subdivision (c), this chapter 
is n matter of statewide interest and concern and is applicable 
uniformly throughout the state. Accordingly, this chapter occupies 
the whole field of regulation of reusable grocery bags, single-lise 
carryout bags, and recycled paper bags, as defined in this chaptel: 

(b) On and after January 1, 2.014, a city, county. or other local 
publiCI agency shall not enforce against a store, as defined in 
subdivisio1l (g) of Section 42280, or otherwise implemellt, an 
ordi1lance, resolutio1l, regulation, or rule adopted on or q{ter 
September 1, 2013, reLating to reusable grocely bags, sinRle-use 
carryout bags, or recycled paper bags, as defined in this clzaptel; 
unless expressly authorized by this chapter. 

(cJ A city, county, or other local public agency that has adopted, 
prior to September J, 2013, an ordinance, resolution, regulation, 
or ruie relating to reusabLe,grocery bags, single-use carryout bags, 
or recycled paper bags may continue to enforce and implemellf 
that ordinance, resolution, regulation, or rule that was ill effect 
before that date. Any amendments to that ordinance, resolution, 
regulation, or rule on or after January 1, 2014, shall be subject 
to subdivision (b), except a city, county, or other local public 
agenCy inay amend that ordinance, resoLution. regulation, or rule 
with regard to the amount that a store shall charge with reRard 
to a recycled paper bag. 

o 



C ITY Of 

Rio Dell City hall 
675 Wildwood Avenue 
Rio Dell, CA 95562 
(707) 764-3532 
riodellcity.colII 

«ffi D'ELL 

November 7, 2013 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 

FROM: r{j:etch, City Manager 

SUBJECT: Conceptual Approval for Contracting with HWMA for Recycling Program 
Administration 

IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT THE CITY COUNCIL: 

Approve in concept contracting with Humboldt Waste Management Authority for the 
administration and reporting of Rio Dell's recycling programs. 

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 

The City Manager inherited the administration and reporting requirements for the City's state 
mandated recycling programs about 6 months ago. It's a great program, but it requires time to 
plan program activities and even more time to comply with the required reporting requirements. 
In addition, the mandated program elements are changing and the California Department 
administering the programs, CalRecycle, is becoming more assertive, as evidenced by a recent 
site visit by the Sacramento staff. In short, the City Manager does not have the time to do what 
needs to be done. 

Staffhas been in discussion with the Executive Director of the Humboldt Waste Management 
Authority (HWMA) over the last 2 months to determine the feasibility oftheir providing this 
service to the City. Both the HWMA staff and the Rio Dell City Manager now believe that the 
service is feasibility and will be of mutual benefit to both organizations. And, recycling funds in 
the amount of $1 0,000 is available to fund the program. There is no City General Fund monies 
required for the program. 

Progress on a program outline has been developed as follows: 

1. Administer beverage Container Grant Program (CaIRecycle). 
2. Administer AB 939 programs i.e. diversion and collection reports 
3. Administer AB 341 program concerning mandatory recycling requirements for certain 

multi-family units and commercial businesses. 
4. Coordinate and conduct community outreach programs about recycling 
5. Coordinate and conduct annual electronic waste collection event 

1 

56 



6. Administer other programs, such as a "sharps" container program and household battery 
collect containers. 

7. Administer the Used Oil Grant program funded by CalRecycle. 
8. Administer the Waste Tire Grant program for the region. 

Before proceeding any further, the Council is requested to approve the draft program and 
contractual relationship in concept. With Council approval, staffwill finalize the program details 
with HWMA and develop the necessary agreement. 

2 

57 



C ITY Of 

Rio Dell City hall 
675 Wildwood Avenue 
Rio Dell, CA 95562 
(707) 764-3532 
riodellcity. COlli 

~ DELL 

November 7,2013 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 

FROM: Jim Stretch, City Manager 

SUBJECT: Direction on City Manager Recruitment 

IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT THE CITY COUNCIL: 

Provide the City Manager direction as to the recruitment of a replacement Rio Dell City 
Manager, effective May 21, 2014 or there abouts. 

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 

There is approximately 6 months remaining on my present (City Manager) employment contract, 
at which time I intend to retire. In the beginning, I promised the City Council that I would assist 
in the recruitment ofa replacement if the Council desired. Experience has shown that such 
recruitment can take that length of time for the entire process, with perhaps a short period for 
overlap with the new City Manager. 

The question to the Council is whether you would like me to either 1). Continue to work on the 
priority items on the City Manager's work plan and hire a professional recruiter, or 2). make the 
recruitment and hiring of a qualified candidate my highest priority at this time and reprioritize 
the work plan with the Council to defer some items. Please discuss and give direction. 

Without regard to a decision on items #1 and #2 about, here are some thoughts on the 
recruitment: 

1. The City Manager recruitment should be for a full time professional with minimum 
qualifications and preferences as set forth in the present job description. 

2. Cooperative Personnel Services. will conduct a salary and benefit survey of comparable 
agencies for the position. 

3. Multi-color recruitment flyer will be developed and circulated 
4. Begin immediately to conduct the recruitment in Jobs A vailable,_a specialized 

recruitment listing of management level positions in government used extensively in 
California and other states. 

5. Advertise in the Times Standard and on City website. 
6. Advertise in the League of California Cities publication. 

1 

58 



7. Some Cities appoint 1 or 2 of its members to work with the City Manager in screening 
resumes and working on recruitment details that may arise between Council meetings. 

8. Advertise that the present salary is $108,659, but note that it is currently under review 
and negotiable. 

9. Advertise that the City presently contributes to an ICMA 457 (b) plan for its employees, 
and has an actuarial review underway by CalPERS for retirement benefit options. 

10. City to pay vehicle mileage or air fare, whatever is less, for candidates invited to 
interview, including per/diem while in transit. 

11. City to contract for professional background review of top candidate. 

The 2013-14 City budget includes $18,250 for all of the recruitment expenses mentioned above. 

After the discussion with the Council and direction as appropriate, a time line for the process will 
be developed and offered for approval. 

2 

59 



675 Wildwood Avenue 
Rio Dell, CA 95562 
(707) 764-3532 
(707) 764-5480 (fax) 
E-mail: cm@riodellcity.com 

November 7,2013 

TO: 

FROM: 

Honorable Rio Dell City Council 

Ji4 City Manager 

CITY Of 

~15 DELL 

SUBJECT: Authorization to evaluate enrolling in the California Public Employees Retirement 

System (CaIPERS) 

IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT THE RIO DELL CITY COUNCIL: 

Authorize the City M1l9ager to once again evaluate the costs and benefits of contracting with 
CalPERS for employee retirement benefits, including the conduct of an actuarial evaluation at a cost 
of approximately $2,000, and report back to the Council. 

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 

In 2010 the City agreed with the Rio Dell Police Officer's Association and General Employees 

Association to study the feasibility of enrolling in CalPERS for employee retirement benefits. The 
actuarial analysis was conducted for each unit and the results were presented to the Council. The 

results looked favorable at that time, but the CalPERS Actuary advised the City that their 
investment portfolio had just experienced significant losses in the market place and that it was 
foreseeable that rates would increase substantially. Based on that admonition, the City Council 
elected not to contract with CalPERS for retirement benefits and simply continued the existing 
ICMA 457 (b) retirement plan for employees. 

Since that time the CalPERS rates increases stabilized, their investment portfolio is again earning a 
good return and new plans have been developed that provide reduced benefits and costs. It may be 
to the City's benefit to review the options and costs again. 

There are two (2) other major reasons to take a new look at CalPERS retirement plans and they are: 

1. Employee Recruitments 

60 



2. New Memorandums of Understanding (MOU) with employee Associations and contract 
employees are due to be finalized and effective July 1, 2014. 

With regard to item #1, most California public agencies have contracts with CalPERS for employee 
retirement benefits and that system is transferrable between contract agencies. So an employee can 

work for any number of agencies and continue to build on their retirement plan. In most cases, a 
person looking for professional advancement during their career with another California agency will 
have little interest in a non-CaIPERS agency and will not even apply. 

Rio Dell pays a competitive wage for an agency of its size, but we have been unsuccessful lately in 
attracting professional level candidates and the CalPERS benefit piece may be the reason. The 

ability to attract qualified candidates in the upcoming recruitment for City Manager will 
undoubtedly be limited by this single factor. 

Item #2 above is mentioned because the employees identified this benefit in 2010 as a priority in 
their negotiations and all MOU's and employee agreements are up for renewal July 1,2014. It 
would be to our mutual benefit to have the costs and benefits identified for the CalPERS program as 

we go into those negotiations, which is not to say that that City will implement a retirement change. 

At this time staff has conducted no information gathering nor made any contact with CalPERS on 
this subject. The cost of$2,000 to have them conduct the actuarial evaluation is an estimate. 
Whatever the cost, it will be charged to the City Manager's budget. 

Authorization is requested for the City Manager to contact CalPERS and request an evaluation of 
the costs and benefits of enrolling in CaIPERS, including asking for an actuarial evaluation at a cost 
of approximately $2,000. The City Manager will report back to the Council. 

There are a number of specific resolutions and agreements to be process by the City Council in 
order to get the process going. If the Council adopts the recommendation, staff will contact 

CalPERS and they will send us a packet of documents. 

2 

61 



O TY Or 

675 Wildwood A venue 
Rio Dell, ea 95562 
(707) 764-3532 

~ DELrL 

CITY OF RIO DELL 
STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
NOVEMBER 7, 2013 

TO: Mayor and Members of the City Council 

THROUGH: Jim Stretch, City Manager 

FROM: Stephanie Beauchaine, Finance Director and Rick Chicora, Wastewater {)~ 
Superintendent ~ 

DATE: November 4, 2013 

SUBJECT: PCO on the Wastewater Treatment Plant Upgrade and Effluent Disposal Project 
(WWTP) 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
Staff will provide a recommendation at the Council Meeting. 

BUDGETARY IMPACT 
Staff will provide the budgetary impact at the Council meeting. 

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 
Because of the timing of the contractors paving work at the corporation yard, this item is still in 
process. Staffs have observed a potential drainage concern at the plant in need of review prior to 
the arrival of the paving contractor. The current pavement plan at the yard includes an asphalt 
overlay over an existing v-ditch. The v-ditch allows for rain water to flow through the paved area 
to a drain that sends the water back through the plant. The existing v-ditch is cracked and 
crumbling. There is concern that ifpaved over directly, it will degrade very quickly; lasting at 
most 3-5 years. 

We basically have two other options: One is to take out all the degraded asphalt and reconstruct a 
new asphalt v- ditch, which we expect to last approximately 15 years; the second alternative is to 
remove all of the degraded asphalt and construct a concrete v-ditch that will last approximately 
50 years. Both proposals would include paving the driveway into the plant, and an asphalt curb 
to enhance the drainage, and direct the water to the new v-ditch. 

The contractor is in the process of preparing potential change orders and pricing for the 
Council's consideration. 

62 



675 Wildwood Avenue 

Rio Dell, CA 95562 

(707) 764-3532 

(707) 764-5480 (fa.'\:) 

E-mail: cm@riodellcity.colII 

November 12,2013 

TO: Honorable Rio Dell City Council 

FROM: Jim Stretch, City Manager 

SUBJECT: Amend City Council meeting provision on Election Day 

IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT THE RIO DELL CITY COUNCIL: 

C ITY Of 

~t D'ELL 

Provide staff direction to draft an amendment to Rio Dell Municipal Code Chapter 2.05 (Council 

Meetings), section 2.05.070 (Holidays) to delete any reference to rescheduling a Council meeting if 
it occurs on an election day. 

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 

Rio Dell Municipal Code (section 2.05.070-- Holidays) provides that, if a Council meeting falls on 

a holiday or election, the meeting shall be held on the following Thursday. This provision dates 
back to 1965 when the City was incorporated. Accordingly, the November 5, 2013 Council meeting 
was rescheduled for 11-7-13 even though there were no City issues or officials on the ballot. The 

11-7 -13 Council meeting was cancelled due to the lack of a quorum. 

Analytically, staff does not believe that the automatic rescheduling of a regular Council meeting 
because of an election serves any public purpose, given the fact that polls are open from 7:00AM to 

8:00PM and absentee ballots are easily available. Accordingly, if the Council concurs, it is proposed 
that section 2.05.070 be amended as follows: 

2.05.070 Holidays 
In the event that the first or third Tuesday of any month falls on a legal holiday ef 

eleetioH day, the meeting shall be held on the following Thursday, at the same place and at 

the same hour. 

Staff requests Council direction on this amendment. 

63 


